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Item 1. Financial Statements.
The financial statements of Allied Care Experts (ACE) Medical Center — Zamboanga City, Inc.
(doing business in the name and style of Premier Medical Center Zamboanga with SEC Reg. No.
CS201540355), (the Company) as at and for the period ended September 30, 2024 (with comparative
figures as at June 30, 2024) are filed as part of this Form 17-Q as Annex “A”.
Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.
The information required by Part Ill, Paragraph (A)(2)(b) of “Annex C, as amended” is attached

hereto as Annex “B”.

PART II--OTHER INFORMATION

There are no additional material information to be disclosed which were not previously reported
under SEC Form 17-C.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Regulation Code, the issuer has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Issuer ALLIED CARE EXPERTS (ACE) MEDICAL CENTER-ZAMBOANGA CITY, INC
(Doing business in the name and style of Premier Medical Center Zamboanga with
SEC Req. No. CS201540355)

Signature and Title

Date

Signature and Title
O C. GIMENA
Corporate Secretary

Date 12/27/2024

-

Signature and Title ff
DR. A G. SAHI

Corporate Treasurer/CFO

Date 12/27/2024 Annex “A”




ALLIED CARE EXPERTS (ACE) MEDICAL CENTER-ZAMBOANGA CITY, INC.

(doing business in the name and style of Premier Medical Center Zamboanga)

SEC Reg. No. CS201540355

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 AND JUNE 30, 2024
(Amounts in Philippine Peso)

Notes 9/30/2024 B6/30/2024
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash 24 3 10,514,264 16,498,559
Other Current Assets 27,4 92,540,513 86,228,046
Total Current Assets 103,054,777 102 726,605
MNoncurrent Assets
Property and Equipment, net 28 5 140,363,509 138,381,040
Construction in Progress 28,6 812,817,027 803,155,925
Intangible Asset, net 29,7 122,958 127 568
Other Noncurrent Asset 8 4,609,112 4 609,112
Deferred MCIT 213, 18 98,080 16,925
Deferred Tax Asset 2.13,18 11,564,016 11,564 016
Total Noncurrent Assets 969,574,702 957 854 586
TOTAL ASSETS 1072629479 1060581,191
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Trade and Other Payables 211, 9 36,623,269 77.339,114
Loans Payable 215, 10 750,000 750,000
Income Tax Payable 213,18 81,155 15,627
Total Current Liabilities 37 454,424 78,104,741
Noncurrent Liabilities
Loans Payable 2.15, 10 820,978,500 821,166,000
Deposit for Future Stock Subscription 216,11 — 35,550,000
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 820,978,500 856,716,000
Total Liahilities 858,432,924 934 820,741
Shareholders' Equity
Share Capital 217,12 302,220,000 291,600,000
Authorized 359,400 common shares at Php1,000 par
value; 600 founder shares at Php1,000 par value
Issued and outstanding 317,820 common shares at par;
600 founder shares at par
Additional Paid-in Capital 2.19 12 97,200,000 1,620,000
Deficit 2.18,13  (185,223,445) (167.459,550)
Total Shareholders' Equity 214,196,555 125,760,450
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS'" EQUITY 1072629479 1060581,191

See Notes to the Financial Statements



ALLIED CARE EXPERTS (ACE) MEDICAL CENTER-ZAMBOANGA CITY, INC.
(doing business in the name and style of Premier Medical Center Zamboanga)

SEC Reg. No. CS201540355

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 AND JUNE 30, 2024

(Amounts in Philippine Peso)

Notes 9/30/2024 6/30/2024
Share Capital
Authorized Share Capital
Preferred Shares - -
Common Shares - 359,400 shares, Phpl1,000 par value 358,400,000 358,400,000
Founder Shares - 600 shares, Php1,000 par value 600,000 800,000
Total Authorized Share Capital 217,12 360,000,000 360,000,000
Subscribed Share Capital
Preferred Shares, Beginning Balance - 151,000,000
Conversion to Common Shares —  {151,000,000)
Preferred Shares, Ending Balance 217,12 - -
Common Shares, Beginning Balance 307,200,000 154,400,000
Conversion from Preferred Shares - 151,000,000
Issuances 10,620,000 1,800,000
Common Shares, Ending Balance 217,12 317.820,000 307,200,000
Founder Shares, Beginning Balance 600,000 600,000
Additional Subscriptions - -
Founder Shares, Ending Balance 217,12 600,000 600,000
Subscription Receivable
Beginning Balance (16,200,000) (18,000,000)
Collections during the year - 1,800,000
Ending Balance 217,12 (16,200,000)  (16,200,000)
Total Paid-Up Share Capital 217,12 302,220,000 291,600,000
Additional Paid-in Capital
Beginning Balance 1,620,000 -
Issuances of Shares at above par 95,580,000 1,620,000
Ending Balance 2.19, 12 97.200.000 1,620,000
Deficit
Beginning Balance (167,459,550) (103,781,792)
Net Loss (17,763,895)  (63,677.758)
Ending Balance 218,13  (185,223.445) (167.459.550)
Total Deficit 218,13  (185,223.445) (167.459.550)

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

214,196,555

125,760,450

See Notes to the Financial Statements



ALLIED CARE EXPERTS (ACE) MEDICAL CENTER-ZAMBOANGA CITY,

INC.

(doing business in the name and style of Premier Medical Center Zamboanga)

SEC Reg. No. CS201540355

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 AND JUNE 30, 2024

(Amounts in Philippine Peso)

MNotes 9/30/2024 6/30/2024
Revenues 2.1, 14 10,792,959 -
Cost of Revenues 2.2, 15 19,894,940) —
Gross Profit 898,019 -
Other Income 16 3,161,437 791,124
Operating Expenses 23,17 (16,760,125 (41,953,046)
Operating Loss {12,700,669) (41,161,922)
Finance Cost 215,10 (5,063,226) (22,515,836)
Loss before Provision for Income Tax (17,763,895) (63,677,758)
Provision for Income Tax 2.13,18 - —
NET LOSS (17,763,895) (63,677,758)

See Notes fo the Financial Statements

LOSS PER SHARE

(56.73)

(410.82)




ALLIED CARE EXPERTS (ACE) MEDICAL CENTER-ZAMBOANGA CITY, INC.
(doing business in the name and style of Premier Medical Center Zamboanga)

SEC Reg. No. CS201540355

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 AND JUNE 30, 2024

(Amounts in Philippine Peso)

Notes 9/30/2024 6/30/2024
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Loss before Provision for Income Tax (17,763,895) (B3,677,758)
Adjustments to reconcile Loss before Provision for
Income Tax to Operating Loss before Working Capital
Changes:

Finance Cost 215,10 5,063,226 22,515,836

Depreciation 28,5 4,042,305 5,162,209

Amortization 29,7 4,610 9,219

Interest Income 16 (1,723) {9,753)
Operating Loss before Working Capital Changes (8,655,477) (36,000,247)
Working Capital Changes:

Decrease (increase) in:

Other Current Assets 27,4 (6,312,467) (3,206,123)
Increase (decrease) in:

Trade and Other Payables 211, 9 (40,715,845) 1,211,695
Cash used in Operating Activities (55,683,789) (37,994 675)
Interest Income Received 16 1,723 9,753
Income Tax Paid (15.627) {1,298)
Met Cash used in Operating Activities (55,697,693) (37,986,220)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Acquisition of Property and Equipment 28,5 (6,024,774)  (6,924,992)
Additions to Construction in Progress 28,6 (9,661,102) (21,525,439)
MNet Cash used in Investing Activities (15,685,876) (28,450,431)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Proceeds from Loans 215,10 - 112,175,000
Finance Cost Paid 2.15, 10 (5,063,226) (22.515,836)
Payment of Loans 215,10 (187,500) (12,901,594)
Refund of Deposit for Future Stock Subscriptions 216,11 (35,550,000) -
Collection of Subscription Receivable 217,12 - 1,800,000
Proceeds from Issuance of Shares at above par 219,12 95,580,000 1,620,000
Proceeds from Issuance of Shares 219,12 10,620,000 1,800,000
Met Cash provided by Financing Activities 65,399,274 81,977,570
Net increase (decrease) in cash (5,984,295) 15,540,919
Cash, Beginning Balance 16,498 559 a57 640
CASH, ENDING BALANCE 24 3 10,514,264 16,498,559

See Notes fo the Financial Statements
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ALLIED CARE EXPERTS (ACE) MEDICAL CENTER-ZAMBOANGA CITY, INC.
(doing business in the name and style of Premier Medical Center Zamboanga)
SEC Reg. No. CS201540355

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

11



CORPORATE INFORMATION AND STATUS OF OPERATIONS

ALLIED CARE EXPERTS (ACE) MEDICAL CENTER - ZAMBOANGA CITY, INC. (DOING BUSINESS
UNDER THE NAME AND STYLE OF PREMIER MEDICAL CENTER ZAMBOANGA) is a domestic stock
corporation registered with the Philippines’ Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on
December 18, 2015 with the SEC Registration No. of CS201540355. The Company is governed by a
Board of Directors (BOD) consisting of nine (9) individuals with Romeo A. Ong as the Chairman of
the Board. The Company is a value-added tax (VAT) registered entity with the Bureau of Internal
Revenue (BIR). The Corporation applied for Initial Public Offering (IPO)-Selling of
Shares/Securities, which was approved with a Permit from the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) as of June 14, 2024

The primary purpose of the Company is to establish maintain, operate, own, and manage
hospitals. medical and related healthcare facilities and business such as but without restriction
to clinical laboratories, diagnostic centers, ambulatory clinics, condo-hospitals. scientific
research, and other allied undertakings and services which shall provide medical. surgical,
nursing, therapeutic. paramedic. or similar care, provided that purely professional. medical. or
surgical services shall be performed by duly qualified and licensed physicians or surgeons who
may or may not be connected with the hospitals and whose services shall be freely and
individually contracted by the patients.

The principal office of the Company is located at Don Alfaro St, Tetuan, Zamboanga City.
Philippines. As of June 30, 2024. the Company has seventeen (17) key management personnel and
fifty-two (52) employees.

Approval of the interim financial statements

The interim financial statements of the Company as of June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023 and
for the interim periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 were authorized for issuance by the Board
of Directors (BOD) on November 11, 2024.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company is required to disclose material accounting policy information. Accounting policy
information is material if it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary
users of financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements when considered
together with other information included in the interim financial statements. These policies shall
be consistently applied to all periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of Presentation

The interim financial statements have been prepared by ALLIED CARE EXPERTS (ACE) MEDICAL
CENTER - ZAMBOANGA CITY, INC. (DOING BUSINESS UNDER THE NAME AND STYLE OF PREMIER
MEDICAL CENTER ZAMBOANGA) under the historical cost convention basis and are presented in
Philippine Peso (Php), which is also the Company's functional currency. The Company uses the
calendar year accounting period and adopts the accrual basis of accounting. The end of the
Company's reporting period is on December 31. All values are rounded to the nearest peso, except
when otherwise indicated.

12



Statement of Compllance

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards (PFRS) requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Company’s accounting
policies.

The interim financial statements have been prepared in conformity with PFRS, which include all
applicable PFRS. Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS) and interpretations issued by the
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Commities (IFRIC), Philippine Interpretations
Committee (PIC). and Standing Interpretations Committes (SIC) as approved by the Financial
Reporting Standards Council (FRSC) and the Board of Accountancy (BOA), and adopted by SEC.
These are based on the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

The principal accounting and financial reporting policies adopted in preparing the Company’s
financial statements are as follows:

Adoption of Hew Interpretations, Revizlons, and Amendments to PFRS

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except
for the following new and amended Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). Phillppine
Accounting Standards (PAS) and Philippine Interpretations of Intemational Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committes (IFRIC) which were not adopted as of December 31, 2022, Except as
otherwise indicated, the adoption of these new accounting standards and amendments have no
material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

The nature and the impact of each new standard and amendment are described below:
+ Amendments to PAS 1, Disclosure of Accounting Policies

On 12 February 2021, 1ASE amends IFRS Standards to improve accounting policy
disclosures and clarify distinction between accounting policies and accounting estimates.

The amendments will help companies:

+  improve accounting policy disclosures so that they provide more useful information to
imvestors and other primary users of the interim financial statements: and

» distinguish changes in accounting estimates from changes in accounting policies.

The nammow-scope amendments to PAS 1 reguire entities to disclose their material
accounting policy information, instead of significant accounting policies. The amendments
will be effective for annual reporting pericds beginning on or after 1 January 2023, with early
application permitted. Guidance has been provided by the IASE on how to apply the
concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosures.

When management prepares the interim financial statements of an entity in accordance
with IFRSs, the auditor will need to evaluate the appropriateness of managements
disclosures, including how management has addressed the effect of the amendments to
IAS 1 on the entity’s disclosures about accounting policies. This includes understanding the
effect of these amendments on the entity's financial reporting process (e, what
management may need to change to implement the amendments and the nature and

13



extent of change in disclosures about the entity’s accounting policies) as well as the related
impact on the auditors report

In addition, other aspects of the audit engagement that may be impacted include the audit
engagement letter and communicating deficiencies in intermal control to and requesting
written representations from management and, where appropriate, those charged with
CoVEeImMance.

The Company has adopted the replacement of "significant’ with ‘'matenal’ accounting policy
information in PAS 1. Disclosure of Accourntting Policies and its corresponding new guidance.

Amendments to PFRS Practice Statement 2, Disclosure of Accounting Policies

On 12 February 2021 1ASB has issued amendments to IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making
Materiality Judgements following feedback that more guidance was needed to help
companies decide what accounting policy information should be disclosed.

IFRS Practice Statement 2: Making Materiality Judgements (Practice Statement) provides
companies with guidance on how to make materiality judgements when preparing their
general purpose financial statements in accordance with IFRS Standards.

The need for materality judgements is pervasive in the preparation of financial statements.
IFRS Standards require companies to make materiality judgements in decisions about
recognition, measurement, presentation, and disclosure.

The Practice Statement:

+ provides an overview of the general characteristics of materiality:

= presents a four-step process companies may follow in making materality judgements
when preparing their financial statements; and

+ provides guidance on how to make materiality judgements in specific circumstances;
namely. how to make materality judgements about prior-penocd information, emors amd
covenants, and in the context of interim reporting.

The PFractice Statement is a non-mandatory document. It does not change or introduce any
requirements in IFRS Standards and companies are not required to comply with it to state
compliance with IFRS Standards.

Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments fo PAS i and IFRS Proctice Statement
2) amends PAS 1 in the following ways:

= an entity is now required to disclose its material accounting policy information instead
of its significant accounting policies;

* seyeral paragraphs are added to explain how an entity can identify material accounting
policy information and to give examples of when accounting policy information is Ukely
o be material;

« the amendments clarify that accounting policy information may be material because of
its nature. even if the related amounts are immaterial;

+  the amendments clarify that accounting policy information is material it users of an
entity’s financial statements would need it to understand other material information in
the interim financial statements; and

#*  the amendments clarfy that if an entity discloses immaterial accounting policy
information. such information shall not obscure material accounting policy information.

14



The Company has adopted the guidance and examples to demonstrate the application of
the 'four-step materality process' on material accounting policy information to support the
amendments made to PAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies.

Amendments to PAS 8. Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

On 12 February 2021, the 1ASE issued "Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to
IAS 8) to help entities distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates.

The changes to |1AS 8 focus entirely on accounting estimates and clarify the following:

The definition of a change in accounting estimates is replaced with a definition of
accounting estimates. Under the new definition, accounting estimates are “monetary
amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty.” Entities
develop accounting estimates if accounting policies require items in financial statements
to be measuraed in a way that involves measurement uncertainty. The Board clarifies that a
change in accounting estimate that results from new information or new developments is
not the correction of an error. In addition, the effects of a change in an input or a
measurement technique used to develop an accounting estimate are changes in
accounting estimates if they do not result from the correction of prior period errors. A
change in an accounting estimate may affect only the current period's profit or loss, or the
profit or loss of both the current period and future periods. The effect of the change relating
to the current peried is recognized as income or expense in the current period. The effect,
if amy. on future periods is recognized as income or expense in those future periods.

Adoption of this amendment will not have any impact on the interim financial statements
of the Company.

Amendments to PAS 12, Income Taxes

On 7 May 2021, the |ASE has published 'Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction (Amendments to LAS 12) that clarify how companies account for
deferred tax on transactions such as leases and decommissioning obligations.

The main change in Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction (Amendments to 1AS 12) is an exemption from the initial recognition exemption
provided in 1AS 12 1g5(b) and |AS 12 24 Accordingly, the initial recognition exemption does
not apply to transactions in which equal amounts of deductible and taxable temporary
differences arise on initial recognition. This is also explained in the newly inserted
paragraph [AS 12 224

An entity applies the amendments to transactions that occur on or after the beginning of
the earliest comparative pericd presented. it also. at the beginning of the earliest
comparative pericd presented, recognizes deferred tax for all temporary differences
related to leases and decommissioning obligations and recognizes the cumulative effect
of initially applying the amendments as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
eamings (or other component of equity, as appropriate) at that date.

Adoption of this amendment will not have any impact on the interim financial statements
of the Comipany.



Standards ./ Amendments [2suesd but Not Yet EFfective

Standards and amendments issued but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the
company financial statements are listed below. This listing of standards and interpretations
issued are those that the Company reasonably expects to have animpact on disclosures, financial
position or performance when applied at a future date. Unless otherwise stated, the Company
intends to adopt these standards when they become effective.

Effective January 1, 2024
*  Amendments to PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements

The amendmenis clarify paragraphs 6o to 76 of PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements,
to specify the reguirements for classifying liabilities as curmrent or non-current The
amendments clarify:

« ‘What iz meant by a right to defer settlement;

*  That a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting pericd;

*  That classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its deferral
right; and

* That only if an embedded derivative in a convertible lability is itself an equity
instrument would the terms of a liability not impact its classification

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January
1, 2023 and must be applisd retrospectively. However, in November 2021, the International
Accounting Standards Board (LASB) tentatively decided to defer the effective date to no
earlier than January 1, 2024.

The Company is curmrently assessing the impact of this amendment and plans to adopt the
new amendment on the required effective date.

+  Amendments to PFRS 16, Leases

These amendments include requirements for sale and leaseback transactions in PFRS 15,
Leases to explain how an entity accounts for a sale and leaseback after the date of the
transaction. Sale and leaseback transactions where some or all the lease payments are
variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or rate are most likely to be
impactec.

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback (Amendments to PFRS 16. Leases) requires a seller-
lessee to subsequently measure lease liabilities arising from a leaseback in a way that it
does not recognize any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right of use it retains.
The new requirements do not prevent a seller-lessee from recognizing in profit or loss amy
gain or loss relating to the partial or full termination of a lease.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting pericds beginning on or after 1 January
2024. Earlier application is permitted.

A seller-lessee applies the amendments retrospectively in accordance with PAS B,
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors to sale and leaseback
transactions entered into after the date of initial application.

The Company is curmrently assessing the impact of this amendment and plans to adopt the
new amsndment on the required effective date.
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=  Amendments to PAS 7. Statement of Cash Flows and PFRS 7. Financial Instruments:
Disclosures-Supplier Finance Ammangemenis

The amendments add a disclosure objective to 1AS 7 stating that an entity is reguired to
disclose information about its supplier finance arrangements that enables users of financial
statements to assess the effects of those ammangements on the entity’s liabilities and cash
flowers. In addition, IFRS 7 was amended to add supplier finance amangements as an example
within the requirements to disclose information alxout an entity’s exposure to concentration
of lguidity risk.

The term suppler finance arrangements’ is not defined. Instead, the amendments describe
the characteristics of an arrangement for which an entity would be required to provide the
information.

To meet the disclosure objective, an entity will be required to disclose in aggregate for its
supplier finance arrangements:

+ The terms and conditions of the arrangemenis;

+  The carrying amount, and associated line items presented in the entity’s statement of
financial position, of the liakilities that are part of the arrangements;

* The carrying amount, and associated line items for which the suppliers have already
received payment from the finance providers;

+ Ranges of payment due dates for both those financial liabilities that are part of a
supplier finance arrangement and comparable trade payvables that are not part of a
supplier finance amangement; and

+ Liquidity risk information.

The amendments, which contain specific transition reliefs for the first annual reporting
period in which an entity applies the amendments, are applicable for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024. Earlier application is permitted.

The Company is currently assessing the impact of these amendments and plans to adopt
the new amendments on the required effective date.

Effective January 1, 2025
*  PFRS 17. Insurance Contracts

PFRS 17 is a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts covering
recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure. Once effective, PFRS 17,
Insurance Confracts will replace PFRS 4, Insurance Confracts. This new standard on
insurance contracts applies to all types of insurance contracts (ie., life. non-life, direct
insurance and re-insurancel, regardless of the type of entities that issue them, as well as to
certain guarantees and financial instruments with discretionary participation features. A
few scope exceplions will apply.

The overall objective of PFRS 17 is to provide an accounting model for insurance contracts
that is more useful and consistent for insurers. In contrast to the requirements in PFRS 4,
which are largely based on grandfathering previous local accounting policies. PFRS 17
provides a comprehensive model for insurance contracts, covering all relevant accounting

aspects.
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The core of PFRS 17 is the general model, supplemented by:

« A specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features {the vanable fee
approachl, and

« A simplified approach (the premium allocation approach) mainly for shor-duration
contracts

On December 15, 2021, the FRSC amended the mandatory effective date of PFRS 17 from
January 1, 2023 to January 1. 2025 This is consistent with Circular Letter No. 2020-62 issued
by the Insurance Commission which deferred the implementation of PFRS 17 by two (2)
years after its effective date as decided by the IASEB.

PFRS 17 is effective for reporting pericds beginning on or after January 1, 2025 with
comparative figures required. Early application is permitted.

Adoption of the standard when it becomes effective will not have any impact on the interim
financial statements of the Company.

Amendments to PFRS 17, Insurance Contracts

The amendment adds a transition option for a classification overlay to address possible
accounting mismatches between financial assets and insurance contract liabilities in the
comparative information presented on initial application of PFRS 17. The amendments
would be available for:

= any financial assets, including those held in respect of an activity that s unconnected
to contracts within the scope of PFRS 17; and

= both entities that initially apply PFRS g at the same time as they apply PFRS 17. and
entities that had already applied IFRS g before the initial application of PFRS 17 where
those entities redesignate financial assets applying paragraph C2g of PFRS 17.

The transition option would:

* be available, on an instrument-by-instrument basis;

+ allow an entity to present comparative information as if the classification and
measurement requirements of PFRS g had been applied to that financial asset, but not
reqguire an entity to apply the impairment requirements of PFRS g; and

# require an entity that applies the classification overlay to a financial asset to use
reasonable and supportable information available at the transition date to determine
how the entity expects that financial asset to be classified applying PFRS 9.

The amendment does not amend the transition requirements in PFRS g. At the date of initial
application of IFRS g. an entity is required to apply the transition requirements in IFRS g to
afinancial asset. regardless of whether it has applied the classification overlay tothat asset.

The amendment in PFRS 17 is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after
January 1. 2025. Early application is permitted.

Adoption of the standard when it becomes effective will not have any impact on the interim
financial statements of the Company.
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Amendments to PAS 21, The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

PAS 21 sets out the exchange rate that an entity uses when it reports foreign currency
transactions in the functional currency or translates the results of a foreign operation in a
different currency. Until now, PAS 21 set out the exchange rate to use when exchangeability
between two cumencies is temporarily lacking, but not what to do when lack of
exchangeability is not temporary.

On a5 August 2023, the IASE issued amendments to IAS 21 to help entities:

* assess exchangeability between two currencies; and
* determine the spot exchange rate, when exchangeability is lacking

An entity is impacted by the amendments when it has a transaction or an operation in a
foreign currency that is not exchangesable into another currency at a measurement date for
a specified purpose. A currency is exchangeable when there is an ability to obtain the other
currency (with a normal administrative delay), and the transaction would take place
through a market or exchange mechanism that creates enforceable rights and obligations.

The amendments include accompanying new disclosures to help investors to understand
the effects, risks and estimated rates and techniques used when a currency = not
exchangeable. The new requirements will be effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2025, with earlier application permitted.

Adoption of this amendment when it becomes effective will not have any impact on the
interim financial statements of the Company.

Material Accounting Pollcy Information
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Revenue is income arising in the course of the Company’s ordinary activities comprising of
increases in economic benefits during the accounting period in the form of inflows or
enhancements of assets or decreases of liabilities that result in an increase in equity, other
than those relating to contributions from equity participants.

The Company's revenues mainly come from hospital services and room fees, pharmacy
sales. laboratory fees and vaccine sales. As such, the revenues can be categorically
grouped into sales of goods (pharmacy sales) and rendering of services (hospital services
and room fees,_ laboratory fees and vaccine sales).

Revenue from Confracts with Cusforners

The Company recognizes revenue from contracts with customers based on the transfer of
promised goods in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods. This is delivered in a five-step model
framework:

Step 1- Identifving the contracits

Step 2- identifyving the performance obligations

Step 3 Determining the transaction price

Step 4- Allocating the transaction price to each performance obligation
Step 5- Recogmizing revenus when each performance cbligation is satisfied



2.2

The Company shall recognize revenue when the performance obligation is satisfied over
time.

Revenue is recognized only if the Company’s progress towards the complete satisfaction of
the performance obligation can be reasonably measured. If the cutcome of a performance
obligation cannot be reliably measured but the Company expects to recover the costs
incurred in satisfying the performance obligation, revenue shall be recognized only to the
extent of the cost incurmed until such time that the cutcome of the performance obligation
can be reliably measured.

The Company uses output method for measuring progress towards complete satisfaction
of its performance obligations. Output method recognizes revenue on the basis of direct
measurements of the value to the customer of the services transferred to date relative to
the remaining services promised under the contract.

The Company has a right to consideration from its customers in an amount that corresponds
directly with the value of the Company’'s performance completed to date. Therefore. the
Company recognizes revenue in the amount to which the Company has a right to invoice.

When a performance obligation is satisfied. the Company shall recognize as revenue the
amount of the transaction price that is allocated to that perfformance obligation. The
transaction price is the amount of consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for transfeming promised services to a customer, excluding amounts collected
on behalf of third parties (for example, some sales taxes). The consideration promised in a
contract with a customer may include fiwed amounts, variable amounts. or both.

When the customer pays the consideration, before the Company renders the service to the
customer, the Company presents the contract as a contract liability in the statement of
financial position when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier).
On the other hand, if the Company renders the services to the customer before the
customer pays the consideration or before payment is due the Company presents the
contract as a contract asset. The Company shall present any unconditional rights to
consideration separately as a receivable.

As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Company has no performance obligations that are
unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied. Additionally, there were no considerations from
contracts that were not included in the transaction price.

The incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that the Company incurs to
obtain a contract with a customer that it would not have incurred if the contract had not
been obtained. As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, no asset has been recognized in accounting
incremental costs of obtaining a contract or costs to fulfill a contract

The Company elects to use the practical expedient in recognizing the incremental costs of
obtaining a contract. if any. Such costs are recognized as an expense when incurred if the
amortization pericd of the asset that the Company otherwise would have recognized is one
{1} year or less.

Cost of Revenues

Cost of revenues is composed of the costs directly related to the zale of the goods and
sernvices of the Company. It includes the cost of the goods sold and the freight to obtain the
goods, direct labor, and direct overhead. The cost of revenues is presented in the statement
of comprehensive income as deduction to its related revenue account and recognized
when the goods are sold and the senvices are rendered to the patients.
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Dperating Expenses

Operating expenses are the general and administrative expenses of the Company, normally
incurred in the daily operations and in administering the business such as salaries and
wages and including benefits, depreciation. communication, light, and water, security
salaries, professional fees, and others that are recognized when incurred during the year.

Cazh

Cash consists of cash on hand and cash in bank. Bank overdrafts, if any, are shown within
bomowings as current liabilities in the statement of financial position.

As of September 30, 2024 and June 30, 2024, the Company has no cash equivalents and
bank overdrafis.

Contract Assets

A contract asset is the Company’s right to consideration in exchange for the goods and/or
services transferred to a customer. Contract asset is recognized when the Company already
transferred its promised goods and/or services to the customer before the customer pays
consideration or before payment is due, with payment subject to condition other than
passage of time.

The Company assesses at each statement of financial position date whether there is
objective evidence that the contract asset is impaired. A contract asset is deemed to be
impaired as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset {an incurred “loss event™ and that loss event has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the contract asset that can be reliably estimated.

The Company applies the simplified approach for impairment, in accordance with PFRS g,
Financial Instruments. The Company measures the loss allowance of the contract asset at
an amount equal to lifetime expected credit loss.

As of September 30, 2024 and June 30, 2024, the Company has no contract assets recorded
due to non-operation.

Financial Instruments

Financial instruments are any contracts which give rise to both a financial asset of one entity
and a financial lability or equity instrument of another entity. Regular way purchases and
sales of financial assets are recognized on trade date. the date on which the Company
commits to purchase or sell the financial asset

Initial Recognition

The Company shall recognize a financial asset or a financial Llability in the statement of
financial position when, and only when, the Company becomes party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Initial Measurement of Financial Instruments

The Company shall measure a financial asset or financial Lability at its fair value plus or
minus, in the case of a financial asset or financial liability not at fair value through profit or



loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the
financial instrument

Classification and Subseqguent Measurement of Financial Instruments

ALl financial instruments are initially measured at fair value plus or minus, In the case of a
financial asset or financial lability not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs
that are directly attnbutable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial
Liability.

After initial recognition, the Company shall classify financial assets as subsequently
measured at amortized cost, at fair value through other comprehensive income, or at fair
value through profit or loss on the basis of both: the Company’'s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial
asset.

Where assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognized entirely in
profit or loss (fair value through profit or loss) or recognized in other comprehensive income
{fair wvalue through other comprehensive income) Management determines the
classification of its instruments at initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate,
re-evaluates such designation at every statement of financial position.

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows, where those
contractual cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest. are measured
at amortized cost Interest income from these financial assets is recognized using the
effective interest rate method.

Financial assets that are held for both collection of contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets” cash flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest. are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost and fair value through other
comprehensive income are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

As of September 30, 2024 and June 30, 2024, the Company does not hold any financial
assets measured at fair value through profit or loss and fair value through other
comprehensive income.

Additionally, financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety
when determining whether their cash flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest

As of September 30, 2024 and June 30, 2024, the Company does not hold any financial
assets with embedded derivatives.

Financial llabilities have two measurement categories: fair value through profit or loss and
amortized cost. Financial babilities held for trading are measured at fair value through profit
or loss and all other financial labkilities are measured at amortized cost unless the fair value
option is applied.

All equity investments are to be measured at fair value in the statement of financial position,
with value changes recognized in profit or loss, except for those eguity investments for
which the Company has elected to present value changes in "‘other comprehensive income.’
There is no "cost exception’ for unguoted equities.
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Defermination of Fair Value

The fair valus for financial instruments traded in active markets at statement of financial
position date is measured based on a fair value hierarchy. For level 4, the fair value is the
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or lUabilities that the Company can
access at the measurement date. If level 1 is not available, level 2 is used, that is, the inpuis
other than quoted market prices included within level 1 that are obsernvable for the asset or
liakility, sither directly or indirectly. If level 1 and level 2 are not available, level 3 is used for
estimating the fair value, that is, the uncbservable inputs for the asset or Lability.

For all other financial instruments not listed in an active market, if any, the fair value is
determined by using appropriate valuation techniques. Yaluation technigues include net
present value techniques. comparizon to similar instruments for which market chservable
prices exist, option pricing models. and other relevant valuation models. The fair value of
equity instruments is reliably measurable if the variability in the range of various estimates
i= not significant, or if the probabilities of the various estimates can be reasonably assessed.
If these conditions are not met. the Company is precluded from measuring the instrument
at fair value, and the instrument is carried at cost {less impairment) defined as carmying
amount at the last day when the instrument was reliably measurable.

Reclassiftcation of Financial Instruments

For fimnancial assets, reclassification is required between fair value through profit or loss, fair
value through other comprehensive income, and amortized cost if and only if. the
Company’s business model olbjective for its financial assets changes so its previous model
assessment would no longer apply. IF reclassification is approprate, it must be done
prospectively from the reclassification date which is defined as the first day of the first
reporting period following the change in business model The Company does not restate
any previously recognized gains. losses, or interest. The Company is not allowed o
reclassify any financial Uability or for equity investments measured at fair valus through
other comprehensive income. The Comipany reclassifies debt investments when, and only
when, its business model for managing those assets changes.

For the interim periods ended September 30, 2024 and June 30, 2024, the Company has not
reclassified any financial assets.

Impaiment af Financial Assels

There is no special accounting for impairment loss on financial assets measured at fair
wvalue. This is because all subsequent changes in fair value on these financial assets are
recognized as unrealized gains or losses in profit or loss or in other comprehensive income.
COnly financial assets subsequently measured at amortized cost have a special accounting
for impaiment

The Company assesses the forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors that
affects the credit risk of the financial assets as the basis of its expected credit loss. The
Company recognizes an allowance for probable losses for such expected losses at each
reporting date. The allowance for probalble losses is recognized for all debt instruments not
held at fair value through profit or loss.

The allowance for probable losses is an estimate of the debt that the counterparty debtor
is unlikely to recover. It is a contra-asset account and any increase or decrease to the
allowance for probable losses is also recorded in the statement of comprehensive inconme
as provision for probable losses.
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PFRS o, FAmnancial Iinstrunrents, requires the impaiment model for other financial assets
us=sing the approach discussed below:

Simpliffed Approach for Trade Receivables and Contract Assets

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables and contract assets have
been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The
contract assets relate to unbilled work in progress and have substantially the same risk
characteristics as the trade receivables for the zame types of contracts. The Company
has therefore concluded that the expected credit loss rates for trade receivables are a
reasonable approximation of the loss rates for the contract assets.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales over a period of
twenty-four (24} months before June 30, 2024 and 2023 respectively and the
cormesponding historical credit losses experienced within this period. The historical loss
rates are adjusted to reflect cuwrent and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to setile the receivables.
The Company has identified the Philippine Gross Domestic Product (GDP) and inflation
rate to be the most relevant macroeconomic factors and adjusts the historical loss rates
based on expected changes in these factors.

General appiroacky

The Entity shall recognize a loss allowance for expected credit losses on a financial
asset that is measured at amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, a lease receivable. a contract asset or a lean commitment and a financial
guarantee contract to which the impaiment requirements apply. The Company shall
also measure the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the
lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument
at the reporting date has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Company shall measure the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount
egual to 12-month expected credit losses.

Impaiment of financial assets is recognized in stages: Stage 1-as soon as a financial
instrument s originated or purchased, 12-month expected credit losses are recognized in
profit or loss and a loss allowance is established. This serves as a proxy for the initial
expectations of credit losses. For fimancial assets, interest revenue is calculated on the
gross camying amount (e without deduction for expected credit losses). Stage 2—-if the
credit risk increases significantly and is not considersd low,. full lifetime expected credit
losses are recognized in profit or loss. The calculation of interest revenue is the zame as for
Stage 1. Stage 3-if the credit risk of a financial asset increases to the point that i€ is
considerad credit-impaired, interest revenue is calculated based on the amortized cost (ie.
the gross carrying amount less the loss allowance). Financial assets in Stage 3 will generally
e assessed individually. Lifetime expected credit losses are recognized on these financial
assets.

If the Company has measured the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amouwnt
equal to lifetime ECL in the previous reporting period, but determines at the current
reporting date that the conditions for Ufetime ECL are no longer met the Company
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month ECL at the current reporting
date, except for assets such as trade receivables and contract assets for which simplified
approach was used. The Company recognizes an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for
all financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their carmying amount through
a loss allocwrance acoount.
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A gain or loss on a financial asset or financial liability that is measured at fair value shall be
recognized in profit or loss unless it is part of a hedging relationship, an investment in an
equity instrument and the Company has elected to present gains and losses on that
investment in other comprehensive income, a financial liability designated as at fair value
through profit or loss and the Company is required to present the effects of changes in the
liability's credit risk in other comprehensive income or a financial asset measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income.

Derecognition of Financial Assets

The Company derecognizes its financial asset when the contractual rights to receive cash
flows from the financial asset have expired or when it transfers the financial asset either
through transferring the rights to receive cash flows or assuming the contractual obligation
to pay cash flows to other recipients in full without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through™ arrangement.

Where the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered into a pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset or transferred control of the asset, the
asset is recognized to the extent of the Company’'s continuing involvement in the asset.
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount
of consideration that the Company would be required to repay.

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged,
cancelled or has expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.

Transfers of Financial Assets

The Company transfers all or a part of a financial asset (the transferred financial asset) if,
and only if, it either transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of that financial
asset or it retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of that financial asset but
assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients in an
arrangement.

The Company has continuing involvement in a transferred financial asset if, as part of the
transfer, the Company retains any of the contractual rights or obligations inherent in the
transferred financial asset or obtains any new contractual rights or obligations relating to
the transferred financial asset.

For the interim periods ended September 30, 2024 and June 30, 2024, the Company did not
transfer any of its financial assets. Thus, there were no gains or losses recognized for the

years then ended.
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Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial Liabilities can be offset with the net amount reported in the
statement of financial position if, and only if. there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realize
the asset and settle the lability simultaneously.

Hedge Accounting

All derivatives, including those linked to unquoted equity investments, are measured at fair
value. Value changes are recognized in profit or loss unless the Company has elected to
apply hedge accounting by designating the derivative as a hedging instrument in an eligible
hedging relationship. If certain eligibility and qualification criteria are met hedge
accounting allows the Company to reflect risk management activities in the interim
financial statements by matching gains or losses on financial hedging instruments with
gains or losses on the risk exposures (i.e. credit risk, liquicity risk. and market risl) they

hedge.

In order to qualify for hedge accounting, the hedge relationship must meet the following
effectiveness cnteria at the beginning of each hedged period: (a) there is an economic
relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument, (b) the effect of credit
risk does not dominate the value changes that result from that economic relationship, and
ic) the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as that actually used in the
economic hedge. If the Company elected to apply hedge accounting by designating the
dernvative as a hedging instrument, it would apply the accounting for qualifying hedging
relationships such as fair value hedge, cash flow or hedge of a net investment in a foreign
operation.

As of September 30, 2024 and June 30, 2024, the Company has no derivatives designated

as hedging instruments. Thus, the Company did not apply hedge accounting for the years
then ended.

Other Current Assets

Current assets represent assets that can reasonably be expected to be realized for no more
than twelve (12) months after the reporting date Otherwise, they are classified as
noncurrent assets.

Input VAT Carry-Over

Input VAT carry over occurs when input VAT exceeds output VAT. The excess shall be
carried over to the next calendar year.

Advances fo Suppliers

This account refers to the amount that has been paid to suppliers in advance for goods and
services that are to be purchased at a later date.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are tangible assets that:

a) are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, for rental to others,
or for administrative purposes; and
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b) are expected to be used during more than one period.

The Company shall initially measure an item of property and equipment at its cost. This is
the cash price equivalent at the recognition date. If payment is deferred beyond normal
credit terms, the cost is the present value of all future payments.

The initial cost of property and equipment consists of its purchase price net of trade
discounts and rebates, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes plus any
directly attributable costs of bringing the property and equipment to its working condition
and location for its intended use plus any initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and
removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

Subsequent Measurement

After initial recognition, the Company shall measure all items of property and equipment,
except land, at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. Land and
non-depreciable land improvements are shown at cost less any impairment in value.

Depreciation on other assets is charged so as to allocate the cost of assets less their
residual value over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.

The following are the Company's property and equipment with their estimated useful Life:

Container Van and Vehicles 10 years
Office and Other Equipment g years

Furniture and Fixtures 10 years
Medical Equipment and Fidure 10 years

As land does not have a finite useful life, related carrying amounts are not depreciated.
Depreciation of an asset begins whenit is available for use, i.e. when it is in the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the
Company. The assets’ residual values. useful lives, and depreciation methods are reviewed
and adjusted prospectively. if appropriate, if there is an indication of a significant change
since the last reporting date. This is to ensure that the periods and method of depreciation
and amortization are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from items
of property and equipment. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount.

Presently, the Company has a building under construction. The construction is estimated to
be completed in the years to come. Depreciation on the said asset shall commence once
the asset is available for use. This asset is classified as Construction in Progress under
noncurrent assets in the statement of financial position.

Construction in progress is a long-term asset account in which the costs of constructing
long-term assets are recorded The account is reported in the statement of financial
position.

The costs of a constructed asset are accumulated until the asset is placed into service.
When the asset is completed and placed into service, the account construction in progress
will be credited for the accumulated costs of the asset and will be debited to the
appropriate property and equipment account. Depreciation begins after the asset has been
placed into service.
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Derecognition

When assets are retired or otherwize disposed of, the cost and the related accumulated
depreciation and any impairment in value are eliminate from the accounts and any resulting
gain or loss from the disposal is credited or charged to current operations.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no further
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal Any gain or loss arising on the de-
recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognized.

When property and equipment are retired, or otherwise disposed of, the cost and the
accumulated depreciation and amortization and any impairment in value are removed from
the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss.

As of September 30, 2024 and June 30, 2024, the Company has no contractual commitments
to acquire property, plant and equipment and has not received compensation from third
parties for items of property, plant and equipment that were impaired, lost or given up that
is included in the statement of comprehensive income.

For the interim periods ended September 30, 2024 and June 30, 2024, the Company has no
acquisitions of property. plant and equipment through business combination, and there are
no temporarily idle property. plant and equipment identified Additionally, there are no
items in property, plant and equipment account whose fair value is materially different from
its carrying amount.

Intangible Assets

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance. The
critical attributes of an intangible asset are: (a) identifiability, (b} control and ic) future
economic benefits.

An intangible asset is identifiable when it is capable of being separated and sold,
transferred, licensed, rented, or exchanged, either individually or together with a related
contract or arises from contractual or other legal nghts, regardless of whether those rights
are transferable or separable from the Company or from other rights and obligations. The
definition of an intangible asset requires an intangible asset to be identifiable to distinguish
it from goodull

Recognition

An intangible asset is recognized if, and only if it is probable that the future economic
benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the Company, the cost of the asset
can be measured reliably, and the asset does not result from expenditure incurred
internally on an intangible item.

Initial Measurement

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost. This is the purchase price. including import

duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates
and any directly attributable cost of preparing the asset for its intended use.
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Expenditure on an intangible item that was initially recognized as an expense shall not be
recognized at a later date as part of the cost of an asset.

Subsequent Measurement

The Company’s intangible asset pertains to its hospital software. After initial recognition,
the Company shall measure intangible assets using the cost model to subsequently
measure its intangible assets, which is cost less any accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. The useful life is 10 years, subject to renewal
Amortization of intangible assets is charged so as to allocate the cost of assets over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.

Amortization begins when the intangible asset is available for use The amortization charge
for each period shall be recognized as an expense in the statement of comprehensive
income. Amortization ceases when the asset is derecognized.

Marketing and advertising costs, as well as the royalties paid, are charged to the statement
of comprehensive income as incurred.

Retirements and Disposals

An intangible asset shall be derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal The cost and the related accumulated amortization
and impairment Losses. if any, are removed from the accounts, and the resulting gain or loss
arising from the retirement or disposal is recognized in the profit or loss.

As of September 30, 2024 and June 30, 2024, the Company has no intangible asset to which
the Company has restricted title or that is pledged as security for liabilities or used as
collateral The Company also has not entered into any relevant contractual commitments
pending as of year-end.

Impairment of Assets

An impairment loss occurs when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount. At each end of the reporting period. the Company assesses whether there is any
indication that its tangible assets may be impaired. When an indicator of impairment exists,
the Company makes a formal estimate of recoverable amount. If it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the Company estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset Is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s or cash generating unit's fair value less cost to sell and its value
in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets.

For the interim periods ended September 30, 2024 and June 30, 2024, there were no
impairment losses and reversals of impairment losses of assets recognized.

Trade and Other Payables

Trade and other payables are obligations on the basis of normal credit terms and do not
bear interest These payables anse from past transactions and events, the settlement of
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which is expected to result in an outflow from the Company of resources embodying
economic benefits.

Trade and other payables are recognized initially at transaction price including transaction
costs. Due to the short-term maturity of the accounts and an absence of a significant
financing component. the payables are classified as current liabilities and subsequently
measured at the undiscounted amount of the cash expected to be paid.

Contract Liabilities

A contract lLability is the Company’s obligation to transfer goods and/or services to a
customer for which the Company has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

If a customer pays consideration, or has a right to an amount of consideration that is
unconditional lie. a receivable), before Company transfers the promised good to the
customer, the Company presents the contract as a contract lability when the payment is
made or the payment is due, whichever is earlier.

As of September 30, 2024 and June 30, 2024, the Company has no recorded contract
Liability.

Income Tax

Income taxes include all domestic and foreign taxes that are based on taxable profit.
Income tax also includes taxes such as withholding taxes, that are payable by a subsidiary,
associate, or joint venture on distributions to the reporting entity.

Current Income Tax

The amount of income tax payable (recoverable) in respect of the taxable profit (loss) for a
period is the current tax expense. This is also the amount of tax required to be paid to the
BIR. Any unpaid current tax for the current and prior periods is recognized as a liability as
'income tax payable’ in the statement of financial position under current Labilities. If the
amount paid for the current and prior periods exceeds the amount payable for those
periods, the excess is recognized as a current tax asset presented in a separate line item in
the statement of financial position. When a tax loss is used to recover current tax of a
previous period, the Company recognizes the benefit as an asset in which the tax loss
occurs because it is probable that the benefit will flow to the Company and the benefit can
be reliably measured.

Current tax Liabilities (assets) for the current and prior periods shall be measured at the
amount expected to be paid to (recovered from) the taxation authorities, using tax rates and
tax laws that have been enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred Income Tax

Deferred tax is provided, using the asset-liability method or also called as the balance sheet
Liability method, on all temporary differences at the statement of financial position date
between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial

reporting purposes.

Deferred tax assets are the amounts of income tax payable in the future periods in respect
of deductible temporary differences, the carry-forward of unused tax losses and the carry-
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forward of unused tax credits. On the other hand, deferred tax liabilities are the amounts of
income tax payable in future periods in respect of taxable temporary differences
Temporary differences are differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liability
in the statement of financial position and its tax base. It may either be taxable temporary
differences or deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities shall be measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of reporting
perniod. When different tax rates apply to different levels of taxable income, deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities are measured using the average rates that are expected
to apply to the taxable profit (loss) of the periods in which the temporary differences are
expected to reverse.

The measurement of the deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets shall reflect the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the
end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets shall be reviewed at the end of each reporting
period. The Company shall reduce the carrying amount of deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the
benefit of part or all of that deferred tax assets to be utilized. Any such reduction shall be
reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available. Deferred income tax, however, is not recognized on temperary differences that
arise from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting income nor
taxable income or loss.

Deferred tax expense (benefit) represents the net changes in the deferred tax labilities and
deferred tax assets during the period. If the increase in deferred tax liabilities exceeds the
increase in deferred tax assets, the difference is referred to as deferred tax expense
Otherwise, the difference will be referred to as deferred tax benefit.

Offsetting of Current and Deferred Income Tax

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities can only be offset in the statement of financial
position if the Company has the legal right and the intention to settle on a net basis.

©On the other hand, deferred tax assets and deferred tax Labilities can only be offset in the
statement of financial position if the Company has the legal right to settle current tax
amounts on a net basis and the deferred tax amounts are levied by the same taxing
authority on the same entity or different entities that intend to realize the asset and settle
the Liability at the same time.

Emplovee Benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by the entity to its employees in
exchange for services rendered or for the termination of employment. It is categorized as
short-term employee benefits, termination benefits, post-employment benefits and other
long-term benefits.
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Short-term Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits include items such as the following, if expected to be settled
wholly before twelve months after the end of the annual reporting period in which the
current employees render the related services (such as wages, salaries, 555 contributions,
paid annual and sick leave. and bonuses. The entity shall recognize the undiscounted
amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service
either as an expense or a liability, after deducting any amount already paid. If the amount
already paid exceeds the undiscounted amount of the benefits, an entity shall recognize
that excess as an asset.

The law mandates certain contributions that should be provided by an employer to his
employees, namely contributions to: (1) the Social Security System, (2) PhilHealth and (3)
Pag-1BIG Fund.

The Social Security System (555) provides the following benefits to employees, in addition
to its Loan Programs: Sickness, Matemity. Disability, Death/Funeral and Retirement
benefits. So long as an employer has employees who are below sidy (60} years old, the
employer is mandated to remit to the SSS, as employer's contribution, approximately 60%
of the total monthly S55 contribution for each employee.

Once anemployer/employee is a member of the 555, he is also a member of the PhilHealth
program. The contribution to the PhilHealth is shared by the employer and employee
equally.

Finally, all 555 members who are earning at least five thousand pesos (Phps,000) are also
required to become a member of the Pag-1BIG Fund, which is basically a savings and loan
association. Just like the PhilHealth program, the employers and employees share the
monthly contribution equally with a minimum of one hundred pesos (Php100) each per
month.

Salaries and wages given to employees are based on the minimum wage and are reviewed
periodically to determine its adequacy and to determine possible increase. In addition. the
Labor Code of the Philippines provides for the payment of a 13th month of salary or a
praportionate amount. in case employees render service for a fraction of a year during the
current period.

The Philippine Labor Code also mandates the granting of vacation leave and sick leave,
which are known as compensated absences. They are called compensated absences
because employees receive compensation for their absences during the period covered by
their leave.

Female employees are also entitled maternity leave for a period provided in the Labor
Code. Male employees, on the other hand, are granted patemity leave when their spouses
give birth.

Liabilities and payments with regards to short-term employee benefits are recognized as
expenses when the employees have rendered service entitling them to such benefits.

Termination Benefits

Since termination benefits do not provide an entity with future economic benefits, a
company shall recognize them as an expense in profit or loss immediately.
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The Company shall recognize termination benefits as a liability and an expense only when
the entity is demonstrably committed either to terminate the employment of an employes
or group of employees before the normal retirement date; or to provide termination
benefits as a result of an offer made in order to encourage voluntary redundancy.

The Company shall measure termination benefits at the best estimate of the expenditure
that would be required to settle the obligation at the reporting date. In the case of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the measurement of termination benefits shall
be basad on the number of employees expected to accept the offer.

When the termination benefits are due more than twelve months after the end of the
reporting period, they shall be measured at their discounted present value.

Presently, the Company has not yet recognized any termination benefits because there
were no authorized causes for termination such as installation of labor-saving devices,
redundancy. retrenchment. closure or cessation of business, or incurable disease.

Post-employment Benefits

Post-employment benefits are employee benefits other than termination benefits and
short-term employee benefits that are payable after the completion of employment. Post-
employment benefits are formal or informal arrangements under which the Company
provides post-employment benefits for one or more employees. Post-employment benefit
plans are classified as either defined contribution plans or defined benefit plans, depending
on the economic substance of the plan as derived from its principal terms and conditions.
For defined contribution plans, the Company shall recognize the contribution payable for a
period as a lability. after deducting any amount already paid. If contribution payments
exceed the contribution due for service before the reporting date, the Company shall
recognize that excess as an asset or as an expense.

For defined benefit plans, the Company shall recognize a liability for its obligations under
defined benefit plans net of plan assets—its ‘defined benefit liability’ and recognizes the net
change in that Liability during the periced as the cost of its defined benefit plans during the
pernod.

Under Section 28 of PFRS, "Employee Benefits,” the cost of defined retirement benefits,
including those mandated under Presidential Decree Mo, 442, “Labor Code of the
Philippines,” as amended, and RA No. 7641, "Retirement Pay Law.” should be determined
using the accrued benefit valuation method or the projected benefit method The law
further stipulates that in the absence of a formal retirement plan or agreement providing
for retirement benefits of employees in the Company, employees upon reaching the age of
sixty (60) years or more, but not beyond sixty five (65) years which is declared to be the
compulsory retirement age, who has served at least five (5) years in the Company, may
retire and shall be entitled to retirement pay equivalent to at least one-half (1/2) month
salary for every year of service, a fraction of at least six (6) months being considered as one
whole year. Unless the parties provide for broader inclusions, the term one-half (1./2) month
salary shall mean fifteen (15) days plus one-twelfth (1./12) of the 13th month pay and the
cash equivalent of not more than five (5) days of service incentive leaves. The law lkewise
provides that retail. service and agricultural establishments or operations employing not
more than ten (10) employees or workers are exempted from the coverage of the said Law.

As of reporting date, the Company has not yet recognized any post-employment benefits
obligation as its employees have yet to meet the minimum requirements set by the law that
wrould entitle them to such benefits.
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Borrowings and Borrowing Costs

Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value which is its transaction price equivalent to
the present value of the payable including transaction costs. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortized cost.

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with
the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs include interest expense calculated using the
effective interest method.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of aqualifying asset form part of the cost of that asset. Such borrowing costs are capitalized
as part of the cost of the asset when it is probable that they will result in future economic
benefits to the Company and the costs can be measured reliably. Other borrowing costs
are recognized as expense in the period in which they are incurred.

A qualifying asset is an asset that takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use or sale. That could be property, plant, and equipment during the construction
period, intangible assets during the development period, or "made-to-order” inventories.

Where funds are borrowed specifically, costs eligible for capitalization are the actual costs
incurred less any income earned on the temporary investment of such borrowings. Where
funds are part of a general pool, the eligible amount is determined by applying a
capitalization rate to the expenditure on that asset. The capitalization rate will be the
weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the general pool

Capitalization would commence when expenditures are being incurred, borrowing costs
are being incurred, and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale are in progress (this may include some activities prior to commencement of
physical production). Capitalization would be suspended during periods in which active
development is interrupted. Capitalization would cease when substantially all of the
activities necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are complete. If only
minor modifications are outstanding, this indicates that substantially all of the activities
necessary to prepare that part for its intended use or sale are complete.

- I -

Deposit for future stock subscriptions refer to the payments made by the shareholders of
the Company on subscription to the increase in the authorized share capital which cannot
be directly credited to share capital issued, pending approval by the SEC of the amendment
to the Articles of Incorporation for the increase in share capital Under the Financial
Reporting Bulletin 006, as revised in 2017, the Company should not consider a deposit for
future stock subscription as an equity instrument unless all of the following elements are
present:

a) The unissued authorized capital of the Company is insufficient to cover the amount
of shares indicated in the contract;

b) ThereisaBoard of Directors’ approval on the proposed increase in authorized share
capital (for which a deposit was received by the Company);

¢} There is shareholders’ approval of said proposed increase; and

d) The application for the approval of the proposed increase has been presented for
filing or has been filed with the SEC.
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If any or all of the foregoing elements are not present. the transaction should be recognized
as a liability.

Share Capital

Share capital is the amount fixed in the Articles of Incorporation to be subscribed and paid
in or secured to be paid in by the shareholders of the corporation, either in money or
property or services, at the organization of the corporation, or afterwards and upon which
the corporation is to conduct its operations.

Share capital is measured at par value for all shares issued. When the Company issues more
than one class of share capital, a separate account is maintained for each class of share
capital and the number of shares issued. When the shares are sold at a premium, the
difference between the proceeds and the par value is credited to “additional paid-in
capital” account Incremental costs incurred directly attributable to the issuance of new
shares are shown in the equity as deduction from proceeds, net of tax.

A preferred stock is a class of ownership that has a higher claim on its assets and earnings
than common stock Preferred shares have a dividend that must be paid out before
dividends to common shareholders. These shares usually do not carry voting rights.

Ordinary shares or common shares shall be entitled to receive dividends as may be
declared after the requirements with respect to preferential dividends on preferred shares
have been met. After distribution in full of the preferential amounts to be distributed to the
holders of preferred shares in event of voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution,
distribution of assets or winding up of the Company, the holders of commeons shares shall
be entitled to receive all remaining assets of the Company for whatever kind available for
distribution to shareholders ratably proportion to the number of common shares held by
them respectively. Except as may be otherwise required by law or by Articles of

Incorporation, each holder of commen shares shall have one vote in respect of each share
held

Founder's shares are shares exclusively issued to the originators of the Company. The
holders of these shares have the exclusive right to vote and be voted upon in the election
of directors for a limited period not to exceed five (5) years from the date of incorporation.

Subscribed share capital

Subscribed share capital is part of the authorized share capital which has been sold,
whether paid or not by shareholders and is measured at par value.

Subscription receivable

Subscription receivable is the portion of issued share capital that remained unpaid as of
reporting date. This is presented as part of the current assets if maturity is within twelve (12)
months from the financial reporting period. Otherwise, it is presented as a deduction from

equrty.
Retained Earnings

Retained earnings represents the cumulative balance of periodic net income or loss,
dividend contributions. prior period adjustments, effects of changes in accounting policy
and other capital adjustments, if any. When retained earnings account has a debit balance,
it is called “deficit” A deficit is not an asset but a deduction from equity.
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Appropriated Retained Earnings

These pertain to the restricted portion of the Company's accumulated profits that are
appropriated for Company and capital expenditures.

Unappropriated Retained Earnings

These pertain to the unrestricted portion of the Company’'s accumulated profits that are
available to meet current operational needs.

Additional paid-in-capital represents the excess paid by a shareholder over and above the
par-value of a share issued and is included in the shareholders’ equity section of the
Corporation’s statement of financial position.

. istributi

Dividend distnbution to the Company’s shareholders is recognized as a liability in the
interim financial statements in the peniod in which the dividends are approved by the
Company's shareholders.

. iod

Prior period errors are omissions from, and misstatements in, a Company's financial
statements for one or more prior periods arising from a failure to use, or misuse of, reliable
information that was available and could reasonably be expected to have been obtained
and taken into account in preparing those statements Such errors result from
mathematical mistakes, mistakes in applying accounting policies, oversights or
misinterpretations of facts and fraud.

Prior petiod errors must be corrected retrospectively in the interim financial statements.
Retrospective application means the correction affects only prior period comparative
figures. Current period amounts are unaffected

Where impracticability impairs a Company's ability to correct an accounting error
retrospectively from the earliest prior period presented, the correction must be applied
praspectively from the beginning of the earliest period feasible.

Related Party Transactions

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services, or obligations between
related parties, regardless of whether a price is charged.

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to
control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making
financial and operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are
subjected to common control or commeon significant influence. Related parties may be
individuals or corporate entities.

Associates and individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of
the Company that gives them significant influence over the enterprise, key management
personnel, including directors and officers of the Company and close members of the
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family of these individuals and companies associated with these individuals are also
considered related parties.

Transactions between related parties recorded in the books of the Company as "Due
to/from Related Parties.” In considering each possible related party relationship, attention
is directed to the substance of the relationship and not merely the legal form.

. :

Basic eamings per share amounts are calculated by dividing net profit for the year
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

The computation for loss per share for the interim periods ended September 30, 2024 and
June 30, 2024 are as follows:

302024 6/30/2024

Met Loss (17,763,895) (63 677 758)
Divided By: Weighted Average Ordinary Outstanding Shares* 313,110 155,000
Loss per Share (56.73) (410.82)

*Cirdinary Outstanding Sharas pertain to Conmmmon and Founder Shares issued.

Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing or amount. The Company recognizes provisions
if, and only if: (a) a present obligation (legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past
event (the obligating event), (b) payment is probable and (c) the amount can be estimated
reliably.

An obligating event is an event that creates a legal or constructive obligation and, therefore,
results in the Company having no realistic alternative but to settle the obligation. A
constructive obligation arises if past practice creates a valid expectation on the part of a
third party.

The amount recognized as a provision should be the best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date, that is, the amount that
the Company would rationally pay to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date or to
transfer it to a third party. In reaching its best estimate, the Company should take into
account the risks and uncertainties that surround the underlying events. If some or all of
the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another
party, the reimbursement should be recognized as a separate asset, and not as a reduction
of the required provision, when, and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement
will be received if the Company settles the obligation. The amount recognized should not
exceed the amount of the provision.

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations depending on whether some uncertain future
event occurs or present obligations but payment is not probable or the amount cannot be
measured reliably. A possible obligation (a contingent Liability) is disclosed but not accrued.
However, disclosure is not required if payment is remote.

Contingent assets are possible assets that arise from past events and whose existence will
be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Company. Contingent assets should not be
recognized but should be disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
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When the realization of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is not a contingent
asset and its recognition is appropriate.

As of September 30, 2024 and June 30, 2024, the Company has no provisions or
contingencies.

225 Events After the End of the Reporting Period

Events after the end of the reporting period are those events, favorable and unfavorable,
that occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the interim financial
statements are authorized for issue. Post year-end events that provide additional
information about the position of the Company at the end of the reporting period (adjusting
events) are reflected in the interim financial statements. Post year-end events that are not
adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the interim financial statements when
material

There were no events after the end of the reporting period that were matenal enough to
require adjustments to the amounts shown on the face of the intenim financial statements
nor of the accompanying notes.

Management’s Use of Judgements and Estimates

The preparation of the interim financial statements in conformity with Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
certain reported amounts and disclosures. In prepanng the interim financial statements,
management has made its best estimates and judgments of certain amounts, giving due
consideration to materiality. The estimates and assumptions used in the accompanying financial
statements are based upon management’s evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as of
the date of the interim financial statements. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those
estimates, and such estimates will be adjusted accordingly.

The following are the key assumptions that have significant risk of material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the financial year.

a) Estimating the Useful Lives of Property and Equipment

The estimated useful life of each of the company’s property and equipment is estimated
based on the period over which the asset is expected to be available for use. Such
estimation is based on a collective assessment of industry practice, internal technical
evaluation and experience with similar assets. However, Information regarding technical
evaluation of asset utilization and related industry benchmark on the anticipated use of
similar assets may not always be available to management at the time of these estimates.
The estimated useful life of each asset is reviewed periodically and updated if expectations
differ from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical or commercial
obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use of asset It is possible, however, that future
results of operations could be matenally affected by changes in the amounts and timing of
recorded expenses brought about by changes in the factors mentioned above. A reduction
in the estimated useful life of any property and equipment and investment property would
increase the recorded operating expenses and cost of sales and decrease noncurrent
assets.
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d)

Impairment of Property and Equipment

An impairment review is performed when certain impairment indicators are present. Ifthere
is an indication of possible impairment, the recoverable amount of any affected property
and equipment is estimated and compared with its carrying amount If estimated
recoverable amount is lower, the carrying amount is reduced to its estimated recoverable
amount, and an impairment loss is recognized immediately on the statement of
comprehensive income.

If an impairment loss is subsequently reversed, the carrying amount of the property and
equipment is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but not In excess
of the amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized
for the property and equipment in prior years. A reversal of impairment loss is recognized
immediately on the statement of comprehensive income.

The determination of the value of property and equipment and other noncurrent assets,
which requires the determination of future cash flows expected to be generated from the
continued use and ultimate disposition of such assets, requires the Company to make
estimates and assumptions that can materially affect the interim financial statements.
Future events could cause the Company to conclude that property and equipment are
impaired. Any resulting impairment loss could have a material impact on the financial
condition and financial performance of the Company:.

The preparation of the estimated future cash flows involves judgment and estimations.
While the Company believes that its assumptions are appropriate and reasonable,
significant changes in these assumptions may materially affect the Company’s assessment
of recoverable values and may lead to future additional impairment charges under PFRS.

For the interim periods ended September 30, 2024 and June 30, 2024, there were no
impairment losses and reversals of impairment losses of property and equipment

recognized.
Applicability of Deferred Tax Assets

The net carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and is
adjusted to reflect the current assessment of future taxable profits. Any adjustment is
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the taxable profit
iloss) of the periods in which it expects the deferred tax asset to be realized, on the basis of
the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
periodd A waluation allowance is provided, on the basis of past years and future
expectations, when it is not probable that taxable profits will be available against which
future income tax deductions can be utilized.

Recognizing Revenue Over Time
An entity transfers control of a good or service over time and therefore, satisfies a

performance obligation and recognizes revenue over time, if one of the following criteriais
met:

= the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the
entity’s performance as the entity performs;
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» the entity’s performance creates or enhances an asset (for example, work in progress)
that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

= the entity’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the entity
and the entity has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

The Company fits into one of the above-stated criteria, and therefore recognized revenue
over tome in accordance with PFRS 15

el Determining the Timing of Satisfaction of the Performance Obligation

The Company's performance obligation at a point in time is satisfied upon the delivery of
the goods to the customers as it is at this point that the customers obtain control of the
promised goods due to the observance of the following indicators:

a) The Company has a present right to payment for the goods. If a customer presently
is obliged to pay for the goods, then that indicates that the customer has obtained
the ability to direct the use of, and obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits
from, the goods in exchange.

b} The customer has legal title to the goods. Legal title may indicate which party to a
contract has the ability to direct the use of, and obtain substantially all of the
remaining benefits from, the goods or to restrict the access of other entities to those
benefits. Therefore, the transfer of legal title of the goods indicates that the customer
has obtained control of the goods. If the Company retains legal title solely as
protection against the customer's failure to pay. those rights of the Company would
not preclude the customer from obtaining control of the goods.

c) The Company has transferred physical possession of the goods. The customer's
physical possession of the goods indicates that the customer has the ability to direct
the use of, and obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits from, the goods or to
restrict the access of other entities to those benefits.

d) The customer has the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods. The
transfer of the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods to the
customer indicates that the customer has obtained the ability to direct the use of and
obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits from, the goods. However, when
evaluating the risks and rewards of ownership of a promised asset, the Company
excludes any risks that give rise to a separate performance obligation in addition to
the performance obligation to transfer the goods.

&) The customer has accepted the goods. The customer’s acceptance of the goods
indicates that it has obtained the ability to direct the use of, and obtain substantially
all of the remaining benefits from, the goods.

h.) Determining the Transaction Price

To determine the transaction price, the Company considered the terms of the contract and
its customary business practices. The consideration promised in a contract with a customer
may include fixed amounts, variable amounts, or both. The Company also assumed that the
goods will be transferred to the customer as promised in accordance with the existing
contract and that the contract will not be cancelled, renewed or modified

For the interim periods ended September 30, 2024 and June 30, 2024, no vanable
consideration, consideration payable to a customer, or obligations for returns, refunds and
suchwere recognized. Also, the contracts had no significant financing component with only
cash as the only form of consideration being accepted by the Company.
Annex
B”
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Allocating the Transaction Price to the Performance Obligation

The objective when allocating the transaction price is for the Company to allocate the
transaction price to each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of
consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring the
promised goods to the customer. The Company has only one performance obligation, i.e
delivery of goods, and as such, no allocation of the transaction price was necessary.

Assets Recognized from the Costs to Obtain or Fulfill a Contract with a Custormer

The incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that the Company incurs to
obtain a contract with a customer that it would not have incurred if the contract had not
been obtained.

As of September 30, 2024 and June 30, 2024, no assets from the costs to obtain or fulfil the
contracts with the customers were recognized. Moreover, the Company has elected to use
the practical expedient in recognizing the incremental costs of obtaining a contract, if any.
Such costs are recognized as an expense when incurred if the amortization penod of the
asset that the Company otherwise would have recognized is one (1) year or less.

Legal Contingency

The estimate of probable costs for the resolution of possible claims has been developed in
consultation with legal counsel handling the Company’s defense in these matters and is
based upon an analysis of potential results of the litigations; no provision for probable
losses arnising from legal contingencies was recognized in the interim financial statements
in 2024 and 2023.

Judgments
In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management exercised

sound judgment including those involving estimates that has significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the interim financial statements.

CASH

The cash account of the Company as of September 30, 2024 and June 30, 2024 are composed
of the following:

973042024 B/30/2024

Cash in Bank 7,893,579 11,006,408
Cash on Hand 2 620,685 54492 150

Cash 10.514.264 16,458,559

The Company's cash in bank as of September 30, 2024 and June 30, 2024 are broken down as
follows:

973042024 6/30/2024

Bank of the Philippine Island 6,937,976 5,361,173
Metropolitan Bank & Trust Company 768,021 1,822 240
Rizal Commercial Banking Corporation 114220 —
Development Bank of the Philippines 73,362 3,822 996

Cash in Bank 7.893.579 11,006 409
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Cash in bank earns inferest at prevailing bank deposit rates. Interest income eamed in
September 30, 2024 and June 30, 2024 amounted to Php1,723 and Phpg,753 respectively. (See
note 16, Other Income). The Company’s cash are all unrestricted in use and free from any liens
or encumbrances.

4. OTHER CURREMT ASSETS
The other current assets account of the Company as of September 30, 2024 and June 30, 2024

are composed of the following:

9/30/2024 6/30/2024
Input VAT Carry-Cwer 85,204 832 85,204 B32
Receivables from PhilHealth 5,633,441 -
Other Receivables 1,670,122 -
Advances to Employees 32118 -
Advances to Suppliers - 1023.214
Other Cumment Assets 92,540,513 86, 228 D46

5. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

The property and equpment account of the Company as of June 30, 2024 and
December 31, 2023 are composed of the following:

B30/2024 Additions/ 9/30/2024

Balance Provisions Balance
Cost
Land 32,412 704 - 32412704
Container Yan and Vehicles 5,276,050 - 5,276,050
(Office and Other Equipment 33,426 462 - 33,426 462
Furniture and Fixtures 32,434 584 886,379 33,320,963
Medical Equipment and Fixture 57.128 624 5,138,395 62,267,019
Total Cost 160 678 424 6,024 774 166,703,198
Accumulated depreciation
Container Yan and Vehicles 1408 572 131901 1540473
Office and Other Equipment 13,245 146 1571,323 14,917 469
Furnifure and Fixtures 7,642 666 810,865 8,453,531
Medical Equipment and Fixure - 1428216 1.428.216
Taotal Accumulated Depreciation 22,207 384 40482 305 20,339,689
Net book value
Land 32,412 704 32412704
Container Yan and Vehicles 3,867 478 3735577
(Office and Other Equipment 20,180,316 18508993
Furniture and Fixtures 24791918 24 867 432
Medical Equipment and Fixdure 57,128 624 60,838,803
Property and Equipment, net 138,381,040 140,363 509
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1172024 Additions/ 6/30/2024
Balance Provisions Balance
Cost
Land 32,412 704 - 32 412 704
Container Van and Vehicles 5,276,060 - 5,276,080
Office and Other Equipment 33.002 463 423999 33,426 462
Furniture and Fixiures 31.963 191 471,393 32 434 had
Medical Equipment and Fixture 51,000 024 6,029,600 57,128 624
Total Cost 153,753,432 6,924 992 160 678 424
Accumulaied Depreciation
Container Van and Vehicles 1 144 769 263,803 1408572
Oiffice and Other Equipment 9,845 900 3,300,246 13,246 146
Furniture and Fixiures 6,044 506 1598 160 7,642 Go6
Medical Equipment and Fidture — — —
Total Accumulated Depreciation 17,135 175 5,162 200 22,297 384
Met Book Value
Land 32,412 704 32 412 704
Container Van and Vehicles 4 131,281 3,867 478
Office and Other Equipment 23,066 563 20,180 316
Furniture and Fixiures 25 918 685 24 791914
Medical Equipment and Fixture 51,009 024 57 128 624
Property and Equipment, net 136,618 257 138,381,040

There were no disposal or retirement of property and

equipment as of

September 30, 2024 and June 30, 2024 The Company’s land and medical equipment and foxture
are currently held as collateral to secure its loans with the Development Bank of the Philippines.

See Note 8, Loans Payable for further information.

CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

As of September 30, 2024 and June 30, 2024, the movement of this account are as follows:

B/30/2024 Additions/ 9/30/2024

Balance Provisions Balance

Construction in Prograss 803,155 925 9,661,102 812 817,027
V12024 Additions/ B/30/2024

Balance Provisions Balance

Construction in Progress 781630486 21525430 803,155,925

The loan the Company entered into is related to the construction of its qualifying asset. The
interest expense (borrowing cost) therein was capitalized as part of its construction in progress
account Additions to construction in progress account includes capitalizable interest expense
(borrowing cost). The building under construction was held as collateral to secure the term loan
agreement of the Company with the creditor bank. See Note 8, Loans Payable, for further

discussion.
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7.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

As of September 30, 2024 and June 30, 2024, the movement of this account are as follows:

G/30/2024 Additions/ 9/30/20:24
Balance Provisions Balance
Cost
Software 184 375 - 184 375
Accumuloied Amortization
Software h 807 4610 61417
Intangible Assets. net 127 568 122,958
1172024 Additions/ 63072024
Balance Provisions Balance
Cost
Software 184 375 — 184 375
Accumulofed Amorfizafion
Software 47 588 9219 56,807
Intangible Assats, net 136 787 127 568

As of September 30, 2024 and June 30, 2024, there were no retirement or disposal of intangible
assets occurred.

OTHER NONCURRENT ASSETS

The other noncurrent assets account of the Company as of June 30, 2024 and
December 31, 2023 consists of the following:

9730/2024 6/30/2024
Energy Deposit 4,609,112 4609112

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

As of September 30, 2024 and June 30, 2024, this account represents amounts payable to
contractors. Trade and other payables are non-interest bearing and are payable within one year
after reporting period. These are fully settled upon maturity on a lump-sum basis and impose
no restrictions on the Company.

The account consists of the following

9/30/2024 6/30/2024

Accounts Payable 30,366,554 76,565,888
Professional Fees Payables 3779131 —
555, PHIC, and HOMF Payable 2,313,686 244 331
555 and HDMF Loans Payable 113,107 30,609
Deposits from Patients 29948 —
Withholding Tax Payable- Compensation 20843 —
Accrued Expenses — 498 286
Trade and Other Payables 36,623,269 77,330,114
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10.

LOANS PAYABLE

The Company previously entered into two term loan agreements with the Development Bank
of the Philippines (DBP), one in 2018, and the other in 2021. The details of each loan are

summarized as follows:

DBP Loan 1 — Construction

DBP Loan 2 — Equipment and Uiilities

Date Entered

December 3, 2018

July 1, 2021

Finance the construction of hospital

Partly finance its acquisition of hospital

Purpose buildings equipment and building utilities
Credit Line Php450,000,000 Php430,000,000
Maturity 15 years, with 3 years grace period 10 years, with 2 years grace period
Interest Rate 5 25% per annum 5% per annum

During the interim period June 30, 2024, the Company entered into six (6) term loan agreements
with the Bank of the Philippine Islands (BPI), all of which were acquired during the year 2024
The details of each loan are summarized as follows:

BPI Loan 1

BPl Loan 2

Date Entered

February 13, 2024

February 13, 2024

To take out loan outstanding
balance with DEP and partly
finance the construction of hospital

To take out loan outstanding balance
with DEP and partly finance its
acquisition of hospital equipment and

Purpose buildings building utilities
Credit ling Php422 387,000 Php284,520.000
Maturity 10 vears, with 2 years grace pericd 10 years, with 2 years grace period
Interest rate Prevailing Market Rates Prevailing Market Rates

EPI Loan 3

EPI Loan 4

Date Entered

February 13, 2024

February 13, 2024

Partially re-finance the consfruction

Partially finance the construction of the
Z-storey dietary building with

Purpose of hospital buildings commercial space
Credit line Php30.000,000 Php22,500.000
Maturity 10 years, with 2 years grace period 10 years, with 2 years grace period
Interest rate Prevailing Market Rates Prevailing Market Rates

BPI Loan §

EPI Loan G

Date Entered

February 13, 2024

February 13, 2024

Partly finance its acquisition of
hospital equipment and building

To take out loan outstanding balance
with DEP and partly finance its
acquisition of hospital equipment and

Purpose Litilities building utilities
Credit line Php&0.000,000 Php3.000.000

4 Years, with 2 months grace period or
Maturity 10 years, with 2 years grace period up to October 3, 2027
Interast rate Prevailing Market Rates Prevailing Market Rates

The movement of the loans payable account for the interim periods ended September 30, 2024
and June 30, 2024 are as follows:

6302024 973072024

Balance Additions  (Pavments) Balance

BPI- Construction Loan 534 887,000 - — 534,887,000
EPI- Equipment Loan 287,028,000 — (187.500) 286,841 500
Totals 821,916,000 — (187.500) 821728500
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13152024 Release from G/30F2024

Balance Additions {Paymenis) Bury-Dut Balance
DEP - Hospital Building 420,343,182 - (6,856,182) (422487 ,000) -
DBP - Hospital Equipment 293,200 412 - (5, 795.412) (287 .504,000) -
BPI- Constructicn Loan — 534 887,000 - — 534 B87,000
EPl- Equipment Loan — 287,279,000 {260,000) — 287.029,000
Totals 722,642 594 B22186,000 (12901,504) (709,991 000) £B21 916,000

The first loan with DBP was wholly secured by the Company's land and project under
construction, while the second loan is secured with movable assets as listed in the Annex C of
its security agreement with DBP, as well as the receivables arising from Philippine Health
Insurance Corporation, if any.

Cut of the total outstanding loans payable, the current portion as of September 30, 2024 and
June 30, 2024 amounts to Php750,000 and Php750,000 , respectively.

The book value of the assets held as collaterals as of September 30, 2024 and June 30, 2024 are
as follows:

913012024 6/30/2024
Canstruction in Prograss B812.817.02T7 803,155,925
Medical Equipment and Fixture 60,838 803 57 128 624
Land 32412704 32412 704
Total Met Book Value 906,068,534 892 Ba7 253

For the interim periods ended September 30, 2024 and June 30, 2024, the Company paid the
following finance cost:

913012024 6/30/2024
Finance Cost- Capitalized as part of Construction in Progress 9,409,102 16,089,098
Finance Cost- Charged to Profit or Loss 5,063,226 22515836
Finance Cost 14 472328 38 604,934

The finance cost paid and incurred by the Company for the interim periods ended
September 30, 2024 and June 30, 2024 are broken down as follows:

9/30/2024 6/30/2024
Consfruction
Interest 9,409,102 16,089,058
Documentany Stamp Tax - 6,342 b8
Gross Receipts Tax - 2 429 44T
Equipment and Litilities
Interest 5,063,226 9 BAG THE
Documentary Stamp Tax - 2 133 967
Gross Receipts Tax - 1,763,056
Finance Cost 14,472,328 38,604,934

For the interim periods ended September 30, 2024 and June 30, 2024, the interest expense on
the construction loan amounting to Phpg.409.102 and Phpi6,08g.098, respectively, were
capitalized to the construction in progress account.

The interest expense on equipment and utilities loan, as well as the documentary stamp taxes
and gross receipts taxes on both loans with an aggregate walue of Phps 063226 and
Php22 515836 are recognized as expense for the interim periods ended September 30, 2024
and June 30, 2024, respectively.
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Documentary stamp taxes are remitted to the BIR by the related intermediary financial
institution. The Company did not incur any default in paying the interests of the loan and no
restrictive covenants were imposed by DEP.

The following were the conditions set by DBP for Construction Loans:

Conduct its business in an orderly, efficient, and customary manner.

Maintain adequate books, accounts, and records.

Comply with applicable laws, statutes, rules, regulations, orders, and directives of any
government agency.

Pay all indebtedness and perform all contractual obligations promptly and in accordance
with the terms.

Deliver to the lender its financial statements.

Promptly give written notice any legal proceedings and other matters.

Open and maintain depository account

Environmental compliance.

Mot make or permit any material change in the character of its business, or engage in any
business operation or activity other than authorized by Law.

Mot permit any material change in ownership or control of its business or of its capital
stock or in the composition of top-level management

Mot incur additional loan.

Mot act as guarantor or surety.

Mot declare or pay dividends.

Mot sell lease, transfer, or dispose all or substantially the properties and assets.

Mot extend any loans, advances, and subsidies.

Mot create or suffer to exast any lien, security interest, or other charge or encumbrance,
or any other type of preferential arrangement.

It will not permit the ratio of its total debt-to-equity to exceed 2:1 at any time during the
entire term of the loan.

It will not permit the ratio of its current assets to current liabilities to be less than 11 at
any time until after the term of the loan

It will not permit the ratio of its net operating income to total debts to be less than 1x at
any time.

The following were the conditions set by DBP for Equipment and Utiliies Loans:

Conduct its business in an orderly, efficient, and customary manner.

Maintain adequate books, accounts, and records.

Comply with applicable laws, statutes, rules, regulations, orders, and directives of any
government agency.

Pay all indebtedness and perform all contractual obligations promptly and in accordance
with the terms.

Deliver to the lender its financial statements.

Promptly give written notice any legal proceedings and other matters.

Open and maintain depository account.

Environmental compliance.

Mot make or permit any material change in the character of its business, or engage in any
business operation or activity other than authorized by Llaw.

Mot permit any material change in ownership or control of its business or of its capital
stock or in the composition of top-level management

Mot incur additional loan.
Mot act as guarantor or surety.
Mot declare or pay dividends.
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» Not sell lease, transfer, or dispose all or substantially the properties and assets.

» Not extend any loans, advances, and subsidies.

» Not create or suffer to exist any lien, security interest, or other charge or encumbrance,
or any other type of preferential arrangement.

» It will not permit the ratio of its total debt-to-equity to exceed 2:1 at any time during the
entire term of the loan.

« [t will not permit the ratio of its current assets to current liabilities to be less than 111 at
any time until after the term of the loan.

» It will not permit the ratio of its net operating income to total debts to be less than 1x at
any time.

The following were the conditions set by BPI for its Loans:

» Utilize the proceeds of the Loan exclusively for the purpose stated in the loan agreement.

* Ensure that improvements up to the extent of the outstanding balance of the Loan net of
the valuation of the asset mortgaged and maintain such insurance in force until the Loan
shall have been fully paid.

* Promptly pay and discharge all taxes assessments and governmental charges of
whatever nature validity and legally levied upon it or against its properties and business.

* Maintain the mortgaged asset in good condition and shall conduct its business in
consonance with good business practices.

* Should the collateral be lost or damaged or shall suffer an appreciable depreciation in
value, the borrower shall furnish the bank additional securities.

*  Furnish the bank with audited financial statements within g0 days after the end of each
fiscal year, certified by independent public accountants acceptable to the bank

*  Furnish the bank interim financial statements within 60 days after the end of each quarter.

*  Submit to the bank a certificate of non-default thirty business days after the end of each
quarter.

»  Furnish the bank such other information as the bank may reasonable request in writing.

« Shoulder all out-of-pocket expenses related to the loan

» Keep adequate books of record and account in accordance with GAAP.

» Not effect any merger, consolidation or other material change inits ownership, corporate
set-up or management.

* Not incur, create, assure or permit to exast any additional indebtedness except in normal
course of business.

» Not engage inany business except for business authorized by its Articles of Incorporation.

» Not sell transfer, convey or dispose of any substantial portion of its assets without prior
written consent of the Bank

* Not declare of pay any cash dividends or redeem or repurchase any outstanding share,
or make any capital or asset distribution to its stockholders without prior written consent
of the bank

» Shall not declare or pay management bonuses or profit sharing if any of its obligations is
not current

+ Shall not voluntarily suspend its business operations or dissolve its affair.

+ Shall at all times maintain a current ratio of at least 1x

« Shall at all times maintain a D-E Ratio no greater that 3x should not be met

=  Shall at all times maintain debt service cover ratio of not less than 1.25x
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11.

DEPOSITS FOR FUTURE STOCK SUBSCRIPTION

The deposit for future stock subscription balance as of September 30, 2024 and June 30, 2024
are as follows:

913002024 6/30/2024
Deposit for Future Stock Subscription - 35,550,000

The movement of the account are presented as follows:

2024 2023
Deposit for Future Stock Subscription, Beginning Balance 35,550,000 35,550,000
Refund (35,550,000) -
Proceeds — —
Deposit for Future Stock Subscription, Ending Balance — 35,550,000

This account refers to the consideration received by the Company with the purpose of applying
the same as payment for future issuance of shares. As of reporting date, the deposit for future
stock subscription is recognized as a noncurrent liability since it does not meet all the
requirements enumerated by the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC).

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Company received deposits from investors
amounting to Phpis,550,000 for future stock subscriptions under an agreement to issue shares
upon fulfillment of certain conditions. However, due to the cancellation of stock subscription
agreement, the Company refunded the deposits to the respective investors.

The refunds were processed in accordance with the terms of the deposit agreement. As of
September 30, 2024, no outstanding balances related to these deposits remain on the
Company's books.

Management has reviewed the circumstances surrounding the refunds and does not expect
any material impact on the Company's financial position or operations.

SHARE CAPITAL

At the date of incorporation, the Company had an authorized share capital of Php360,000,000,
comprised of 180,000 preferred shares with Php1000 par value per share, 179.400 ordinary
shares at Php1.000 par value per share, and 600 founder shares at Php1,000 par value per share.
However, during 2024, the Corporation amended its Articles of Incorporation due to the
conversion of all its preferred shares to common shares and now has an authorized share
capital of Php360,000,000, comprised of 359.400 common shares with Php1,000 par value per
share and 600 founder shares at Php1,000 per share.

Of the authorized shares. the following shares were subscribed by the shareholders:

9/30/2024 6/30/2024
317 820 Common Shares at par 317,820,000 307 200,000
G600 Founder Shares at par @00,000 G00,000
Totals 318,420,000 307 800,000

However, the amount of paid-up share capital as of September 30, 2024 and June 30, 2024 is
only Php302220000 and Php2g1600,000 respectively, thereby recognizing a subscription
receivable of Php16,200,000 as of September 30, 2024.
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13.

DEFICIT

The Company's deficit increased to Phpi1B5223445 as of September 30, 2024 from
Php167 450,550 as of June 30, 2024. This increase was due to the net loss incurred by the
Company for the interim period ended September 30, 2024 amounting to Php17.763,8g5

There were no appropriations and dividend declarations made as of September 30, 2024 and

June 30, 2024,

REVEMUES

The Company’s revenue for the interim periods ended September 30, 2024 and June 30, 2024

are as follows:

9/30/2024 6/30/2024

Income from Room and Board 2,634,655 -
Income from Dialysis 2,244 508 -
Income from Operating Room 2,013,494 -
Pharma Sales 1,404 968 -
Income from Emergency Room 1,160,612 -
Patient Service Income 1,067,015 -
Sale of Medical Supplies 187,930 -
Income from Delivery Room 43191 —
Income from Meonatal Special Care Linit 23117 —
Income from Recovery Room 89219 -
Income from Cardio Pulmo 4,250 -
Revenues 10,792,959 —

i5. COST OF REVENUES

16.

The Company's cost of revenues for the interim periods ended September 30, 2024 and

June 30, 2024 are as follows:

9130/2024 6/30/2024
Depreciation 4042 305 —
Professional Fees 2,635,045 -
Medical Supplies 1748941 -
Communication, Light, and Water 1,265,131 —
Dietary Supplies 203,518 -
Cost of Revenues 9,894,940 -

OTHER INCOME

The other income of the Company for the interim periods ended September 30, 2024 and

June 30, 2024 are as follows:

9130/2024 6/30/2024
Income from Laboratory 2,458,520 436 632
Income from Radiclogy 608,061 37,060
Income from Patient Transport Service 81865 13710
Clinic Rental 11,268 168 418
Interast from Bank Deposits 1723 8,753
Income from Dialysis — 7h,788
Pharma Sales - 48713
Other Income 3161437 791,124
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17.

OPERATING EXPENSES

The operating expenses account of the Company for the interim periods ended
September 30, 2024 and June 30, 2024 are composed of the following:

9/30v2024 6/30/2024

Salanes and Wages including Benefits 11,300,008 0,727 9%
Communication, Light, and Water 2 562 47T 7,881,158
S55, PHIC, and HDMF Contributions 1421771 677,181
Office Supplies 535,770 264 568
Repairs and Maintenance 451,146 43 896
Security Salaries 318,089 586,167
Transportation and Travel 668,154 99,130
Trainings and Seminars 63,150 -
Honorarium 29,500 26,203
Taxes and Licenses 5,450 29497 148
Amortization 4,610 9219
Depreciation — 5 162 209
Fuel and Qil - 4369111
Medical Supplies - 268,039
Mestings and Forums - 33,304
Professional Fees - 848,500
Fines and Penalties - 12 926 218
Miscellaneous — Z7.000
Operating Expenses 16,760,125 4] 953 045
INCOME TAX

On March 26, 2021 the Republic Act No. 11534 or the CREATE Act was signed and officially
effective on Apnl 11, 2021, with some retroactive provisions. The Act introduces to the corporate
income tax and incentive systems.

Under this Act, domestic corporations in general are subject to a regular corporate income tax
(RCIT) rate of 25%, effective July 1, 2020. However, corporations with net taxable income not
exceeding Phps.000,000 and total assets not exceeding Php100,000,000, excluding the land
on which the particular business office, plant and equipment are situated, will enjoy a lower
income tax rate of 20%, effective July 1, 2020.

In addition, this Act also reduces the minimum income tax rate (MCIT) rate from 2% to 1%,
effective July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2023 However, starting July 1, 2023, the minimum income tax
rate (MCIT) rate for corporations will now revert toits original 25 rate based on the gross income
of such corporations.

The income tax liability of the Corporation is still based on the higher amount between the gross
income multiplied by the MCIT rate and the taxable income multiplied by RCIT rate. Any
resulting excess of the MCIT over the RCIT is recognized as a deferred tax asset which can be
deducted against future income tax liabilities of the Company.
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The Company's computation for income tax payable as of September 30, 2024 and
June 30, 2024 are as follows:

930/2024 63072024
Regular Comparate Income Tox (RCIT)
Accounting Loss Subject to Tax {17,765,618) (63,687 ,611)
Temporary Differences - -
Taxable Loss {17.765,618) (63,687 ,611)
Income Tax Rate 25% 256%
Current Income tax Expense (Benefit) (4,441 404) (15,921 878)
Minimum Corporafe Income Tax (MCIT)
Gross Profit 898,019 -
Cther Income 3,161,437 791,124
Income Subject to Final Withholding Tax (1.723) (9,753)
Gross Income 4.057,733 781371
Multiphy by: MCIT rate 2% 206
MCIT Dug 81,155 15,627
Income Tax Due (higher between RCIT and MCIT) 81,155 15 627
Income Tax Credits — -
Income Tax Payable 81,155 15 627

Met loss can be claimed as a deduction from gross income for the next three (3) consecutive
taxable years immediately following the year of such loss as Met Operating Loss Carry-Over
(NOLCO).

The details of the Company’s NOLCO which can be carried forward and claimed as tax credit
against regular taxable income are as follows:

MNOLCO

Applied NOLCO
ear NOLCO Previous NOLCO Applied Balance
Incurred Amount Year Expired Current Year WValid Until NOLCO
2023 46 256 062 — — — 2026 A6 256 062

The tax effect of the temporary difference forms part of deferred tax asset account. The
mowvement of deferred tax asset during 2023 is as follows:

2023
Defarred Tax Asset, Beginning Balance -
Additions during the Year 11 564 016
Applied during the Year —
Deferred Tax Asset, Ending Balance 11 564 016

The excess of MCIT owver the regular income tax is presented as a noncurrent asset in the
staterment of financial position under the line-item Deferred Charges — MCIT. It is an asset that
is carried forward on an annual basis and credited against the normal income tax for the three
(3} immediately succeeding taxable years. The details of this account are as follows:

9/30/2024 6/30/2024
Deferred Charges - MCIT, Beginning Balance 16,925 1298
Additions during the Year 81.155 15 627
Excess MCIT applied during the Year — —
Deferred Charges - MCIT, Ending Balance 98,080 16,925

52



19,

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control
the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and
operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subjected to common
control or common significant influence. Related parties may be individuals or corporate
entities.

Key Management Personnel

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning,
directing, and controlling the activities of the Company, directly or indirectly, including any
director (whether executive or otherwise) of the Company.

The Company’s key management personnel did not receive any form of compensation for the
interim periods ended September 30. 2024 and June 30, 2024.

RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Board of Directors of the Company has overall responsibility for the establishment and
oversight of the policies and processes which involves identifying, measuring, monitoring and
managing risks. The Board of Directors has delegated to senior management the responsibility
of developing and updating the Company's policies and procedures which address risk
management areas as well as reviewing the adequacy of these policies and procedures in
relation to the risks being faced by the Company.

Senior management is also responsible for monitoring key risk indicators and enforcing strict
compliance with the Company’s policies and procedures. The Company’s senior management
is responsible for taking on and directly managing the risks.

Risk Managemeant

Risk is inherent in the Company's activities, but it is managed through a process of ongoing
identification, measurement and monitoring. This process of risk management is critical to the
Company's continuing profitability and each individual within the Company is accountable for
the risk exposures relating to his or her responsibilities.

Risk Manageme=nt Structure

The Board of Directors is ultimately responsible for the overall risk management approach and
for approving the risk strategies and principles. However, there are separate independent
bodies responsible for managing and monitoring risks.

Risk Measurement and Reporting Systems

While the Company does not currently have an active nisk management team, risk is generally
measured through regular reporting from all portfolio managers. These reports include
portfolio at risk and default statistics for all portfolio entities and are presented and explained
to the Board of Directors and the Investment Committee, or a similar body, on a regular basis.

The use of financial instruments is fundamental to the Company’s core business. Accordingly,

the risks associated with financial instruments represent a significant component of the risks
being faced by the Company.

53



The Company has exposure to a variety of financial risks, such as market risk, credit nisk and
liquidity nsk from its use of financial instruments. These risks and the Company’s risk
management framework and specific risk management policies and procedures for measuring,
maonitoring and managing such risks are outlined below and on the next following pages.
Relevant quantitative disclosures are also included as appropriate.

Market Risk

Market risk is the nsk that the fair value of future cash flows of the financial instruments will
fluctuate due to changes in market variables. Market risk comprises three types of nsk: foreign
exchange risk, price risk and interest rate risk.

{a} Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the nisk that the values of financial instruments will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. All currencies can experience periods of
high volatility which can adversely affect profit margins if suitable strategies are not in
place to protect cash flow from sudden currency fluctuations.

iby Price Risk

Price risk is the risk that fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices. other than those arising from interest rate
risk or currency risk, whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the
individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial
instruments traded in the market.

As of September 30, 2024 and June 30, 2024, the Company is not exposed to market risk
because it does not hold market-sensitive financial instruments.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if counterparty to a financial instrument
fails to meet its contractual obligations. The Company manages and controls credit risk by
setting limits on the amount of risk it is willing to accept for individual counterparties, related
groups of borrowers, for market segmentation, and industry concentrations, and by menitoring
exposures in relation to such limits, among others.

The following table shows the carrying amounts of the Company’s financial assets that have a
maximum exposure to credit risk

9/30/2024 6/30/2024
Cash in Bank 7.893.579 11,006,409
Total 7,893,579 11,008,409

The credit risk for cash in bank is considered negligible since the counterparties are reputable
entities with high quality external credit ratings.

In accordance with the recent related standard issued, the Company classifies financial assets
into the following credit grades:

= Stage 1 Performing — this pertains to accounts with very low probability of defaults
because of the borrower's established ability to tap its liquid resources to fully service its
obligations as they become due. The borrower has no history of default and uses
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leverage sparningly. This category includes debt securities issued or guaranteed by the
government or its agencies or controlled corporations.

* Stage 2. Underperforming — this pertains to accounts with an acceptable probability of
default Mevertheless, the borrower has a strong debt service record and has
demonstrated the ability to readily service its debts. Collateral cover, if applicable, should
be adequate. This includes receivables with good credit standing and amounts lent to
creditors with healthy capital and liquidity ratios.

* Stage 32 Mon-performing — this pertains to accounts for which the Company determines
high probability of not collecting the principal and interest due based on the contractual
terms and agreements. Collateral cover, if applicable, is insufficient

As of September 30, 2024 and June 30, 2024, the credit quality of the Company's financial assets
is presented below:

930/2024
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Cash in Bank 7,893 578 — — 7,893,579
Advances to Suppliers — — - -
Total 7,803,579 — — 7,893,579
6/30/2024
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Cash in Bank 11,006,409 — — 11006409
Advances to Suppliers 1023214 — - 1023.214
Total 12 029 623 — — 12020623

Cash in bank are considered under Stage 1 as performing because management deals only with
top banks in the Philippines.

There are no transfers between stages during 2024 and 2023. Mone of the financial assets that
are fully performing has been renegotiated in 2024 and 2023,

Significant increase in Credit Risk

When determining whether the credit risk (e, nsk of default) on a financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition., the Company considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both qualitative and quantitative information and analysis based on the Company’s
experience, expert credit assessment and forward-looking information.

The Company primarily identifies whether a significant increase in credit risk has occurred for
an exposure by comparing:

= the remaining lifetime probability of default (PD) as at the reporting date; with
+ the remaining Lifetime probability of default (PD) for this point in time that was estimated
on initial recognition of the exposure.

The Company believes that the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly
when the contractual payments of the counterparty debtors are more than 120 days past due.
A financial asset is past due when a counterparty has failed to make a payment when that
payment was contractually due Due dates are determined without considering any grace
period that might be available to the borrower.
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Definition of “Default” by the Management

The term “default” is not defined in PFRS g Financial Instruments and the Company will have to
establish its own policy for what it considers a default, and apply a definition consistent with
that used for internal credit risk management purposes for the relevant financial instrument.
The Company defines its financial instruments in default in all cases when the counterparty
debtor is not able to pay after the one year from its due date.

Liquichity Risk

Liquicity risk is the risk that a company will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet
commitments associated with the financial liabilities. Liquidity risk may result from either the
inability to sell financial assets quickly at their fair values, or counterparty failing on repayment
of a contractual obligation; or inability to generate cash inflows as anticipated.

The Company manages its liquidity profile to be able to finance the operations and capital
expenditures, service the maturing debts and meet other financial obligations. As part of the
Liquidiity risk management program, the Company regularly evaluates its projected and actual
cash flows including the loan maturity profiles, and continuously assesses conditions in the
financial markets for opportunities to pursue fund raising activities. The Company's objective is
to maintain a balance between continuity and flexibility through the use of internally generated
funds and banks. The Company regularly evaluates its projected and actual cash flow
information and continuously assesses conditions in the financial markets.

The tables on the next page summarize the maturity profile of the financial liabilities of the
Company based on remaining undiscounted contractual obligations as of June 30, 2024 and
2023. The table also analyzes the maturity profile of the company’s financial assets in order to
provide a complete view of the company’s contractual commitments and liquidity.

/3072024

Carmrying Gio 12 Ower 12
Amourt & months or less months months

Asseis
Cash 10,514 264 10,514 264 - -
Accounts Receivable-Nontrade 5,633 441 5,633 441 - -
Advances to Suppliers - - - -
Total 15,147 705 16,147 705 — —

Liabiliies
Accounts Payable 20,266,654 30,366,654 - -
Loans Payable 821 728 500 - 750,000 820,978,500
__ Deposits fior Future Stock Subscription - - - -
Total 852 095,054 30,366,654 750,000 820,978,500
Liquidity Gap {B35,047 348) {14 218 848) {750,000y  (820,978,500)
B/3072024

Carrying 6 months or Gto 12 Ower 12
Amount less months months

Assets
Cash 16,498,550 16 498 559 - -
Accounts Receivable-Montrade - - - -
Advances to Suppliers 1023214 1023214 - —
Total 17,621,773 17,621,773 - —
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Carrying & months or Gto 12 Owver 12

Amount less months months

Liabilities
Accounts Payable 76,665,888 76,565, 888 — —
Loans Payable B21 916,000 — TEO,000 B21 166,000
Dieposits fior Fulure Stock Subscription 35,650,000 — — 25,650,000
Total 034 0321 888 76,665,888 TED,000 BEE. 718,000
Liguidity Gap {916.,610,115) {59,044 115) (750,000) (B56,716,000)

The Company's objective in managing liquidity risk is to ensure that it will always have sufficient
means to meet its Labiliies when due, whether under normal or stressed conditions, without
incurring unacceptable losses or nisking damage to the Company’s reputation. Additionally, the
Company obtains the support of its shareholders to meet additional cash requirements when
necessary.

Interest Rate Risk

Interast rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash
flowws or the fair values of financial instruments. There are two types of interest rate risk:

a) Fair value interest rate risk — the risk that the value of the financial instruments will
fluctuate because of changes in the market interest rates and

by Cash flow interest rate risk — the nisk that future cash flows of financial instruments will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Company's exposure to changes in interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s loans
payable Its policy is to manage its interest cost by regularly entering into short-term bank loans
as it relates to its working requirements in order to mitigate the impact of potential increase in
loan interest rates from borrowings.

The table below shows the financial assets and liabilities that are interest-bearing.

9/30/2024 GE302024
Effective Amount Effective Amount
Interest _ Interest .
Rate in Php Bate in Php
j Fixed rate 0.25% to 0.25% to
Financial Asset Cash in bank 0.50% 7,893,579 0.50% 11,006,409
- Fixed rate
Financial 5% to 5% to

The interest coverage ratio is used fto determine how easily a Company can pay
interest expenses on outstanding debt The ratiois calculated by dividing a Company's
earnings before interest and taxes by the Company's interest expenses for the same period.

The Company's interest coverage ratio for the interim periods June 30, 2024 and 2023 is
computed as follows:

93072024 B/30/2024
Loss before Interest and Tax (12.700,669) (41,161 922)
Divide by: Finance Cost 5.063.226 22,515,836
Interest Rate Coverage Ratio {2.51) (1.83)
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The audit findings also reveal that the interim financial statements are not affected significantly
by interest rate risk. The Company does not perform sensitivity analysis since the Company
expects that the effect of change in interest rates will have insignificant effect on the
Company's operations. Additionally, as the Company has no significant interest-bearing assets,
its income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates.

. _

These risks arise from various operational and administrative procedures that the business uses
to implement its strategy. The Company's policy maintains close monitoring of everyday
operations by well-trained superiors, and timely reports of the different departments are
submitted to top management.

Compliance Risk

These risks derive from the necessity to ensure compliance with laws, regulations, and other
less formal societal expectations which, if infringed, can damage the Company. The Company
implements strict guidelines which management, staff, and employees adhere to.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management policy is to ensure that debt and
equity capital are mobilized efficiently to support business objectives and maximize
shareholder value The Company monitors capital on the basis of the carmying amount of equity
as presented on the face of the statement of financial position. It sets the amount of capital in
proportion to its overall financing structure, 1.e, equity and financing labilities. The Company
complies with RA No. 11232, the Revised Corporation Code of the Philippines, on imposed
capital requirements and has no restrictions on the issue and re-purchase of ordinary shares.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies and processes from the previous years.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in
economic conditions. To meet its objectives. the Company continuously seeks for new buyers
to generate higher earnings as it maintains a positive relationship with its existing customers.
The Company's objectives for managing capital are:

» Toinvest the capital in investments meeting the description, risk exposure and expected
return indicated in the Company’s investment policies;

* To safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as going concem;

*  To maintain sufficient liquidity to meet the expenses of the Company; and

» To maintain sufficient size to make the operation of the Company cost-efficient.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in
economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the
dividend payment to its stockholders or pay off existing debts.

The Company manages the following capital

9/30/2024 6/30/2024

Long-Term Loans 820,978,500 821,166,000
Equity 214 196 555 125,760,450
Total 1,035,175,055 946,926 450
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22,

The Company maonitors its capital on the basis of leverage ratio. This ratio is calculated at net
debt divided by total capital The ratio measures financial leverage that demonstrates the
degree to which the Company’s operations are funded by equity capital in comparison to debt
financing. A high leverage ratio represents a high proportion of debt to equity and a low
leverage ratio represents a low proportion of debt to equity.

The leverage ratio of the Company as of September 30, 2024 and June 30, 2024 is as follows:

9/30/2024 6/30/2024

Total Liabilities 858,432,924 934 820,741

Cash (10.514 264) (16,498 5068)

Met Debt BAT 918,660 918 322 182

Total Equity 214,196 555 125 760 450

Total Capital 1062115215 1044 082632

Leverage Ratio 80% B8%
FIMANCIAL RATIOS

Financial ratios serve as an indicator or measurement tool to determine effectivity /efficiency
onvarious financial aspects of the Company such as but not limited to, its ability to meet or pay-
off current or long-term debts, the effectiveness or efficiency in asset usage, the availability of
cash for immediate payment of obligations and many other.

Financial ratios compare the results in different line itermns of the interim financial statements.
The analysis of these ratios i1s designed to draw conclusions regarding the financial
performance, Liquidity, leverage, and asset usage of a business. This type of analysis is widely
used, since it is solely based on the information located in the intenm financial statements,
which is generally easy to obtain. In addition, the results can be compared to industry averages
or to the results of benchmark companies to see how a business is performing in comparison
to other organizations.

Current Ratio

Current ratio is primarily used to determine the Company's capability to pay-off current debts
with its current assets. Current Ratio determines the liquidity of Company, the capacity of the
Company to meet/pay its current obligations using its current assets (cash, assets readily
convertible to cash). Higher current ratios indicate that the Company is more capable to meet
current liabilities when they are due.

Debt-to-Equity Ratio

Debt-to-equity ratio compares the Company’s total debt to total equity. It is used to determine
the amount of financing the Company has from external sources/creditors in companson to
equity infused by shareholders.

Solvency Ratio

Solvency ratio is a key metric used to measure the Company’s ability to meet its debt
obligations and is used often by prospective business lenders. This ratio indicates whether a
Company's cash flow is sufficient to meet its short and long-term liabilities.
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Equity Ratio

Equity ratio shows the relationship between the Company’s asset and equity. This ratio is used
to measure the proportion in which the Company’s total asset is funded by the Company's

equity.
Assets-to-Equity Ratio

Assets-to-equity ratio indicates the relationship of the total assets of the Company to the part
owned by shareholders. This ratio is an indicator of the Company's leverage (debt) used to
measure the proportion of total assets financed by the Company's equity.

Return on Equity

Return on equity is a measure of profitability that calculates how many peso of profit a
Company generates with each peso of shareholders’ equity.

Return on Assets

Return on equity assets is a financial ratio that shows the percentage of profit a Company earns
in relation to its overall resources.

Asset Turnover Ratio

The asset turnover ratio is an efficiency ratio that measures a Company's ability to generate
sales from its assets by comparing net sales with average total assets. In other words, this ratio
shows how efficiently a Company can use its assets to generate sales.

Guick Assat Ratio

The quick ratio or acid test ratio is a liquidity ratio that measures the ability of a Company to pay
its current liabilities when they come due with only quick assets. Quick assets are current assets
that can be converted to cash within go days or in the short-term. Cash, cash equivalents, short-
term investments or marketable securities, and current accounts receivable are considered
quick assets.

Operating Profit Margin

Operating margin is a measurement of what proportion of a Company’s revenue is left over after
paying for costs of operations.

Net Profit Ratio

The net profit ratio is the ratio of after-tax profits to net sales. It reveals the remaining profit
after all costs of production, administration, and financing have been deducted from sales, and
income taxes recognized. As such, it is one of the best measures of the overall results of the
Company, especially when combined with an evaluation of how well it is using its working
capital

The computations of the financial ratios of the Company are shown on the next page.
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FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS

9/30/2024 6/30/2024
Current Assets 103,054,777 102 726 8605
Divide by: Current Liabilities a7 450 424 78,104 741
Current Rafio 275% 132%
Total Liabilities 858,432 924 934 820,741
Divide by: Taotal Equity 214,196,555 125 760 450
Debt - Equity Ratio 401% T43%
Total Assets 1,072 629479 1.060,581,191
Divided by: Total Liabilities 858,432 924 934 820741
Solvency Ratio 125% 113%
Total Equity 214,196,555 125, 760 450
Divide by: Total Assets 1,072 629 479 1,060,581 181
Equity Ratio 20%¢ 12%
Total Assets 1,072 629,479 1,060,581,181
Divided by: Total Equity 214,196,555 125 760 450
Assets-to-Equity Ratio 501% 843%
Met Loss (17,763,895) (63,677,758)
Divide by: Revenue 10,792,959 —
Profitability Ratio -165% -
Met Loss (17,763,895) (63,677,758)
Divide by: Total Equity 214,196,555 125 760 450
Return on Equity -8% 51%
Met Loss (17,763,895) (63,677,758)
Divide by: Total Assets 1,072 629 479 1,060,581,181
Return on Assets -2% -6%
Revenue 10,792,959 —
Divide by: Average Total Assets 1,066,605,335 1,039,560 355
Assat Tumaover 1% (%
Qick Assets 10,514 264 16,498 559
Divide by: Current Liabilities 37450 424 78,104 741
Cuick Assat 28% 21%
Loss before Interest and Taxes (12.700,669) (41,161 922)
Interast Expense 5,063,226 22 515,836
Interast D:werage Ratio -251% -183%

23. ANMNEX-g8)

This prescribes the disclosure requirements including the form and content of the schedules
required by Section 6 of Part Il of the Revised Securities Regulation Code (SRC) Rule 68.
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SCHEDULES
As of and for the interim period ended September 30, 2024

Financial Assets

Value based on
Amount shown in Market Quotation

Name of Issuing Mumber of the Statement of at End of Income Received
Entity Shares Financial Position Reporting Period and Accrued
Mot Applicable

Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Employees, Related Parties, and Principal
Stockholders (Other Than Related Parties)

Balance
MName of at Amounts Balance
Designation Beginning Amounts Written at End of
of Debtor of Period  Additions  Collected Off Cumment  Noncurrent Period

Mot Applicable

Amounts Receivable from Related Parties which are eliminated during the Consolidation of
Financial Statements

Balance
MName of at Amounts Balance
Designation Beginning Amounts Written at End of
of Debtor of Period Additions Collected Off Current  MWoncurrent Period

Mot Applicable

Long-Term Debt

Amount  Amount shown under caption "Long-term debt” in related balance

shown sheet {ii}
under
caplion
mCurrent
portion of
long-term
debr in Total
Amaount redaled Principal
Title of Isswe and type of authorized balance Installments
Obligation {i) by indenturs sheet (i} Year Inersst Rate [per year) Mamurity Date
Long Term Loan 01 (LTL 01) 422 37,000 - 1 Grace Period -
2 Grace Period -
3 T.50% 31,678,025 0321428 - 02212027
4 9% 38,014,830 03/21/2027- 02/2 /2028
13 10.50% 28 F50,835 03/21/2028 - 02/21/2029
6 1% 50,656,440 03/21/2029 - 02/21/2030
T 13.75% 58,078,213 03/21/2030 - 02/21/2031
8 15.75% 66,525,953 03/21/2031 -02/2 /2032
a8 15.75% 66,525,953 03/21/2032 - 02/21/2033
10 15.75% 66,525,953 03/21/2033 - 02/21/2038
Toital 422 387 000
Long Term Loan 02 (LTL 02) 2848 528,000 1 Grace Period -
2 Grace Period -
3 T.50% 21,338,875 0321428 - 02212027
4 9% 25,807,810 03/21/2027- 02/2 /2028
5 10.50% 28,875,545 03/21/2025 - 02/21/2029
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amount  Amount shown under caption "Long-term debt® in related balance
shown sheat [ii}
under
caplion
"Currenlt
portion of
long-termi
deb™ ini Total
Amount relaled Principal
Tile of Issue and type of authorized balance Installments
Obligation (1) by indeniune sheet (i) vear  Inberest Rale [per year) Mamurity Date
L% 34,143,480 03/21/2028 - 02212030
13.75% 38,122,733 03/21/2030 - 0212112031
15.75% 44 813,318 03/21/2031 027212052
15.75% 24 513,318 03/21/2032 - 02/21/2033
10 15.75% 44,613,318 032172033 - 0221/2034
Total 284 523 000
Medium Term Loan 01 (MTL 01) 3,000, 0D 750,000 1
2 marksl rate 750,000 10212025 - a2 12028
3 markst rate 750,000 121728 - o2 12027
4 marksd rale 62,500 2U10/2027
Tolal 750,000 1,582 500
Long Term Loan 03 (LTL 03) 90,000,000 Grace Period -
2 Grace Period -
3 7.50% 6,750,000 0411/2026-03/ 1112027
4 9% 8,100,000 0411/2027-03/11/2028
5 10.50% 8,450,000 i1 1/2026-03/ 1112028
-] L% 10,500,000 0411/2028-03/11/2030
7 13.75% 12,375,000 04/11/2030-03/11/2031
<] 15.75% 14,175,000 0411/2031-03/1 1120352
a 15.75% 1£, 175,000 0411/2032-03/11/2033
10 15.75% 14 175,000 Q1 1/2033-03/11/2034
Total 20,000,000
Long Term Loan 04 (LTL 08} 22 500,000 1 Grace Period -
2 Gracs Period -
3 7.50% 1,887.500 05/21/2026 - QU21/2027
4 9% 2,025,000 05/21/2027 - 02112028
5 10.50% 2,382 500 05/21/2025 - 0&i21/2029
] 12% 2,700,000 05/21/2029 - D&IZ21/2030
7 13.75% 3,083,750 05/21/2030 - D&IZ 12031
& 15.76% 3,543.7650 05/21/2031 - Q0212032
a 15.76% 3,543.760 05/21/2032 - Q02112033
10 15.75% 3,543,750 05/21/2033 - 042112034
Tolal 22 500,000
Grand Total 750,y 820,878,500
E  Indebtedness to Related Parties
Balance at Balance at
Mame of Related Party January 1. 2024 June 30, 2024

Mot Applicable

63



F. Guarantees of Securities of Other Issuers

Mame of Issuing

Entity of Title of Issue of  Toftal Amount
Securities each Class of of Guaranteed Amount Owned by
Guaranteed by Securities and Person which Mame of
the Company Guaranteed QOutstanding  Statement is Filed Guarantes
Mot Applicable
G. Capital Stock
Mo. of
shares
issued and Mo. of
outstanding Shares
shown Reserved
under for Options,
related Warrants, Number of Directors,
Mumber of Statement Conversion Shares held Officers,
Title Shares  of Financial and Other by Related and
Iszue Authaorized Position Rights Parties  Employees Others
Crdinary 358 400 317 B20 - - 51,320 266,500
Founder &00 600 - — 180 420
360 000 318 420 - - 51,500 266,920

*EkEREEEREREFEE
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
for the Third Quarter ended September 30, 2024.

Discussion of Financial Condition and Results of Operation

Statements of Financial Position
September 30, 2024 and June 30, 2024

1. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash equivalents as of September 30, 2024 decreased to P 10,514,264.00, or 36% from
P16,498,559.00 balance as of June 30, 2024.. The expansion in income from out-patient and in-patient
services, other proceeds, as well as from taking out loans from financial institutions has been the main
factor in the company’s increase in cash and cash equivalents.

2. Receivables

As of September 30, 2024 ACE Zamboanga has incurred inpatient and outpatient services. With an
increase/decrease in outpatients, broader PhilHealth coverage, and guarantee letters from local and
governmental entities like the Department of Social Welfare and Development (DSWD), the Philippine
Charity Sweepstakes Office (PCSO), and Local Government Units (LGU), there has been a notable
increase/decrease in receivables amounting to P7,303,563.00. The Company has also recognized
Subscription Receivables, which represent amounts due from subscribers who have committed to
purchasing shares of the company's stock but have not yet remitted the full subscription price. This balance
arises as part of the company's equity issuance process, wherein shares are offered to investors under
subscription agreements.

3. Property and Equipment

Due to ongoing construction - opening of inpatient floors and the addition of new equipment, the Statement
of Financial Position showed an increase in Property and Equipment and Construction in Progress of
P1,982,469.00 and P9,661,102.00 , respectively, or 1% each. Improved facilities and machinery can result
in more productive and higher-quality products, which could boost revenue and market competitiveness.

4, Trade and Other Payables

Comparing the amount as of June 30, 2024 and September 30, 2024, it shows a notable decrease of 53%.
The accounts payable balance as of September 2024 was P36,623,269.00. The decrease in payables
results from paying of previously purchased supplies.

Statements of Comprehensive Income
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September 30, 2024 and June 30, 2024

9/30/2024 6/30/2024
Revenues 10,792,959 -
Cost of Revenues (9,894,940) -
Gross Profit 898,019 -
Other Income 3,161,437 791,124
Operating Expenses (16,760,125) (41,953,046)
Operating Loss (12,700,669) (41,161,922)
Finance Cost (5,063,226) (22,515,836)
Loss before Provision for Income Tax (17,763,895) (63,677,758)
Provision for Income Tax - -
NET LOSS (17,763,895) (63,677,758)
LOSS PER SHARE (56.73) (410.82)

Gross Revenue

The Gross revenue amounting to P 10,792,959.00, directly correlates with number of inpatient and
outpatients and variety of healthcare diagnostic services offered by Hospital upon its operation. The ACE-
PMC Zamboanga opened medical arts floors dedicated to doctors and diagnostic units for specialized
services. This did not only increase the hospital’s capacity to treat more patients but also attracts referrals
from other healthcare providers/clinics seeking specialized care.

General and Administrative Expenses

Operating floors and extending healthcare services result in higher costs/expense. It necessitates a large
financial outlay for the building, provision of medical units and equipment. However, the decrease in
operating expenses for the hospital is primarily due to the fact that the reported figures reflect only the
amounts for the third quarter. The decrease amounted to P25,192,921.00 or 60%. This limited timeframe
naturally results in lower expenses compared to reports covering a full year or multiple quarters, as it
excludes costs incurred in other periods.

Loss for the Period

The cost of operation exceeds the income generated from rendering services to patients, but due to
required equipment and medical staff per Department of Health checklist for opening of the hospital, the
P63,677,758 decreased to P17,763,895 having a decrease of 72% percent. The decrease in net loss for
the third quarter can be attributed to the hospital now being fully operational. With the commencement of
other operations, the hospital has started generating revenue from patient services, which helps offset
expenses. This marks a significant improvement compared to previous periods when the hospital was not
yet operational and incurred costs without corresponding income.The loss during the period ended
September 30, 2024 was lower as compared to June 30, 2024.

Discussion of Top Five (5) Key Performance Indicators
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Discussed below are the key performance indicators of the Company:

i Current/Liquidity Ratios

To meet the Company's obligations and to fund the hospital’s operation, the management has been working
its requirements in securing loan with Bank of the Philippine Islands (BPI) for Construction and Equipment
Loan under various term loan agreements entered into last February 2024 attached herein as Exhibit “A-
series”

Having higher current assets on September 2024 and the decrease in current liabilities, the current ratio
has increased. The Company’s current ratios were 275% and 132% as at September 30, 2024 and June
30, 2024, respectively.

Meanwhile, the Company’s quick ratios were 28% and 21% as at September 30, 2024 and June 30, 2024,
respectively.

The Company's liquid assets consist of cash and receivables.

ii. Solvency/Debt-to-equity ratios

The Company showed debt-to-equity ratios of 401% and 743% as at September 30, 2024 and June 30,
2024, respectively. The decrease in the debt-to-equity ratio compared to the previous period, reflects an
improvement in the financial position. This change is likely due to efforts to reduce total debt through
repayments or restructuring, as well as increases in equity from retained earnings or new investments and
improved cash flow from operations as the hospital becomes more efficient. This lower ratio shows that the
hospital is relying less on debt financing, strengthening their overall financial stability.

iii. Profitability ratios

The Company showed a gross profit ratio of 8% for the third quarter of the year 2024. Net income from
Operations Margin ratio is at (118%) for the quarter because the company operated at a loss.

The company showed Return on Equity of (8%) as at September 30, 2024.

iv. Asset to equity ratio

The Company has a 501% asset to equity ratio as at September 30, 2024 compared to 843% as at
June 30, 2024. The decrease in the asset-to-equity ratio compared to the previous period indicates a shift
toward a more equity-driven financial structure for the hospital. This change may be the result of increased
equity from retained earnings or new investments. The lower ratio suggests that the hospital is relying more
on equity and less on liabilities to finance its assets, reflecting an improvement in its financial health and
sustainability.

V. Interest Rate coverage ratio

As at September 30, 2024, the Company's interest rate coverage ratio was negative 251%, from a negative
183% as at June 30, 2024. The company has begun its ancillary services, namely, Laboratory, Dialysis,
Pharmacy, Radiology, Patient Transport, and has initially opened its inpatient services with 24 bed capacity
last July 2024 and will gradually expand its offerings to meet its interest payments on its outstanding debts.
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The manner by which the Company calculates the key performance indicators is as follows:

September 30,

A. Liquidity Ratio

2024

(Unaudited)

June 30, 2024
(Unaudited)

a. Current Ratio

Current Asset

103,054,777

102,726,605

Current Liabilities

b. Quick Ratio

Current Asset less Inventory and Prepayments

37,454,424

10,514,264

[275 ]

78,104,741

16,498,559

Current Liabilities
B. Debt to Equity Ratio

Total Liabilities

37,454,424

858,432,924

78,104,741

934,820,741

0.21

Total Equity

C. Asset to Equity
Ratio

214,196,555

125,760,450

7.43

Total Assets 1,072,629,479 1,060,581,191
Total Equity (including non-controlling
interest) 214,196,555 125,760,450

D. Profitability Ratio

a. Gross Profit Ratio

[5.01]

[ o]

[ ]

E. Interest Rate Coverage Ratio

Gross Profit 898,019 0
Gross Revenue 10,792,959 0
0.08
Net Income from Operations to Profit
b. Margin Ratios
Income from Operations (12,700,669)
Gross Profit 898,019
C. Return on Equity
Net Income (Loss) (17,763,895) (63,677,758)
Total Average Equity 214,196,555 125,760,450
Loss before Interest and Taxes (12,700,669) (41,161,922)
Interest Expense 5,063,226 22,515,836
|-2.51
NONE NONE

F. Other Relevant Ratios

Discussion and Analysis of Material Events and Uncertainties
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1.The company's quick asset ratio and current ratio both significantly increased, which has an impact on
the company's liquidity. There has been an increase in the current assets, and a corresponding slight
decrease in current liabilities, resulting to a higher current and quick assets ratio.

Given that the corporation has increased the scope of its operation by opening the hospital, the need of
more funds and acquisition of more medical supplies and medicine on account arises.

2. During the reporting period, the Company did not enter into any major off-balance sheet transactions,
arrangements, obligations (including contingent obligations), or other relationships with unconsolidated
organizations or other individuals.

3. Nothing that we now know of has the potential to materially affect the income from continued operations
in a positive or negative way, nor are there any known trends, events, or uncertainties that could.

4. During the quarter, the company continued to make regular capital expenditures, primarily related to
property, equipment, and construction in progress. These expenditures are part of the company’s ongoing
investments to support its operational growth and infrastructure development. Further details of these
expenditures are provided in Notes 5 and 6 of the unaudited interim financial statements. There are no
material uncertainties related to these capital commitments that would significantly impact the company’s
financial position or operations at this time.

5. There were no seasonal factors that materially affected the company's financial situation or operational
outcomes.
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